
Page 1 

 

AGENDA 
 
Meeting: Stonehenge Area Board 

Place: Phoenix Hall, High St, Netheravon, Salisbury SP4 9PJ 

Date: Thursday 22 September 2022 

Time: 6.30 pm 

 
 

 
Including the Parishes of: Amesbury, Berwick St James, Bulford, Durnford, Durrington, 
Enford, Figheldean, Fittleton cum Haxton, Great Wishford, Milston, Netheravon, 
Orcheston, Shrewton, South Newton, Stapleford, Tilshead, Wilsford cum Lake, 
Winterbourne Stoke, Woodford. 
 

 
The Area Board welcomes and invites contributions from members of the public. 
The chairman will try to ensure that everyone who wishes to speak will have the 

opportunity to do so. 
 

   If you have any requirements that would make your attendance at the meeting easier, 
please contact your Democratic Services Officer. 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Tara Shannon Senior Democratic 
Services Officer, direct line 01225 718352 or email tara.shannon@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
All the papers connected with this meeting are available on the Council’s website at 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114 / 713115. 
 

 
Wiltshire Councillors 

 
Cllr Graham Wright, Durrington (Chairman) 
Cllr Robert Yuill, Amesbury South (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Avon Valley 
Cllr Kevin Daley, Till Valley 
Cllr Dr Monica Devendran, Amesbury West 
Cllr Mark Verbinnen, Amesbury East and Bulford 
 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the 
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes 
within the Council.  
 
By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting and training purposes. The meeting may 
also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.  
 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.  

 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 
details 
 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C62920977f9d7458adb3508d8de4673c2%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503741451190021%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=iAOCOuXslSVayKj59HkeAmFmpeMDeFqb%2Bvlo4j7fDVo%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C62920977f9d7458adb3508d8de4673c2%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503741451199978%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=mQ3KZxORuT0tNgMcHVgP0U%2Bw2%2FImrtiMm88R7Ejwjgk%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C62920977f9d7458adb3508d8de4673c2%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503741451209938%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=%2B45AAStJs7Pyn6Tdfr8KTtkLMFcYEpUZaCyDAM9kUdE%3D&reserved=0


Page 3 

 

Items to be considered Time 

1   Welcome and Introductions  6.30pm 

 To welcome those present to the meeting.  

2   Apologies for Absence   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

3   Minutes (Pages 1 - 8)  

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2022.  

4   Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations 
granted by the Standards Committee. 

 

5   Chairman's Announcements (Pages 9 - 28) 6.35pm 

 To receive the following announcements through the Chairman: 
 

 Engagement and Partnerships Team Structure 

 Annual Canvass 

 Post 16 Skills and Participation Offer 

 Update on behalf of the Wiltshire Centre for Independent 
Living (Wiltshire CIL) 

 

6   Open Floor, including Parish and Partner Updates (Pages 29 - 
36) 

6.40pm 

 Open Floor session with updates from partners, parishes and free 
flow discussion. 

 

7   Shared Lives (Pages 37 - 40) 6.55pm 

 To  receive a presentation from Amy Smith on the Wiltshire Council 
Shared Lives Service. 

 

8   Recognition and Rewards  7.20pm 

 To receive details regarding the Area Board Recognition and 
Reward programme. At the December Area Board meeting the 
Health and Wellbeing Group will recognise those who have who 
have made outstanding contributions to the community.   

 

9   Cluster Meetings and Clinic Details  7.25pm 

 To receive details of upcoming cluster meetings and clinics.   

10   Area Board Priorities Updates  7.30pm 



Page 4 

 

 To receive updates from Area Board Lead Councillors for each 
priority (where not covered by other agenda items).  

 

11   Health & Wellbeing Group  7.45pm 

 To receive an update on the Health and Wellbeing Group. 
 
To consider the following applications for Older and Vulnerable 
Adults grants: 
 

 Wiltshire Music Centre, £1,500.00 towards Celebrating Age 
Wiltshire. 

 Art group, £500.00 towards their art for mental wellbeing for 
older people project. 

 The Lady Antrobus Trust, £975.00 towards The Hauntings 
statue being brought to Amesbury.  

 
Further details on the grants can be seen under agenda item 14.    

 

12   Positive activities for young people  7.55pm 

 To receive an update on youth activities. 
 
To consider the following applications for youth grants: 
 

 Avon Valley Football Club, £2,000.00 towards Avon Valley 
Football Club equipment and kit.  

 Amesbury Rugby Club, £5,000.00 towards a youth rugby 
project. 

 
Grant report with further details under agenda item 14.  
 

 

13   Update from the Local Highways and Footpaths Improvement 
Group (Pages 41 - 68) 

8.05pm 

 To consider the update from the Local Highways and Footpaths 
Improvement Group (LHFIG) and approve any funding 
recommendations. 
 
The Minutes of the latest LHFIG meeting are attached for 
information. 

 

14   Community Area Grants (Pages 69 - 72) 8.10pm 

 To determine the application for Community Area Grant funding: 
 

 Figheldean Village Hall, £2,500.00 towards Figheldean 
Village Hall Heating System Replacement. 

 

15   Urgent items   



Page 5 

 

 Any other items of business which the Chairman agrees to consider 
as a matter of urgency. 

 

16   Close  8.20pm 

 The next meeting of the Stonehenge Area Board, to include the 
‘Reward and Recognition’ celebrations, will be held at 6.30pm on 15 
December 2022 at Antrobus House. 

 

 





Page 1 of 7 
 
 

 

MINUTES 
Meeting:           Stonehenge Area Board 
Place: Woodford Village Hall, Middle Woodford, Salisbury, SP4 6NR 

Date:  30 June 2022 

Start Time: 6.35 pm 

Finish Time: 8.25 pm 

 

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to:  

Kieran Elliott, Democracy Manager ,(Tel): 01225 718504 or (e-mail) 
kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

Papers available on the Council’s website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
In Attendance: 
 
Wiltshire Councillors 
Cllr Graham Wright (Chairman), Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Kevin Daley, 
Cllr Dr Monica Devendran, Cllr Mark Verbinnen and Cllr Robert Yuill 
 
Total in attendance: 33 

 

Minute 
No.. 

Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision 

27   Election of Chair 2022/23 

 On the nomination of Councillor Ian Blair-Pilling, seconded by Councillor Kevin 
Daley, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To elect Councillor Graham Wright as Chairman for the forthcoming year. 

28   Election of Vice-Chair 2022/23 

 On the nomination of Councillor Graham Wright, seconded by Councillor Kevin 
Daley, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To elect Councillor Robert Yuill as Vice-Chairman for the forthcoming 
year. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 of 7 
 
 

29   Welcome and Introductions 

 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Stonehenge Area 
Board and thanked Woodford Village Hall for hosting the meeting. 
 
At the Chairman’s invitation, the Councillors of the Area Board introduced 
themselves. 

30   Apologies for Absence 

 An apology had been received from Debbie Potter, Chair of Tilshead Parish 
Council. 

31   Minutes 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2022 were presented for 
comment, and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
To approve and sign the minutes as a true and correct record. 

32   Declarations of Interest 

 There were no declarations of interest. 

33   Chairman's Announcements 

 Announcements were made as detailed in the agenda and agenda 
supplements. Attention was drawn to the work of the Area Board in the last year, 
including the holding of monthly clinics and cluster meetings with local parishes 
to keep updated on local priotities. 

34   Area Board Update 

 The Community Engagement Manager, Jacqui Abbot, provided an update on 
changes to area board arrangements following a review. These included 
updates to the grant funding criteria, a handbook on arrangements and 
amended processes of the area boards. 
 
Details were provided of the level of grant funding available for the forthcoming 
year, including capital funding, health and wellbeing and local highways funding. 
In order to spread investment widely where possible a limit of £2500 per 
application would be requested for capital funding. 
 
The Chairman then provided an update on activities taking place in the 
community area over the last year, including many which had been supported or 
funded in part by the Area Board, with details included in the presentation 
attached to the minutes. 
 
At the end of discussion, it was, 

Page 2



Page 3 of 7 
 
 

 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Area Board update. 

35   Annual Review of Local Priorities and Open Floor 

 The Community Engagement Manager presented a report on the annual review 
of local priorities, discussing the cluster meetings, subgroups and other 
information gathering to inform an update to the priorities. 
 
Comments were sought on the proposed updates, and Members discussed 
events that had taken place over the last year in support of the priorities. 
 
It was 
 
Resolved: 
 
To acknowledge and note the progress update from the 2021/22 local 
priorities work as at appendix A (pages 70 – 71)  
  
To adopt the suggested priorities for the forthcoming year and appoint 
lead councillors to each priority and their related working groups as at 
appendix B (page 72) :  
  

Health and Wellbeing  

Chairing - Cllr Monica Devendran: Health and Wellbeing Group, supported 
by Cllr Graham Wright: Lunch Club/Activities lead  

  

Young People  

Cllr Mark Verbinnen: Local Youth Network  

  

Cllr Monica Devendran: Health and Wellbeing Group, supported by  Cllr 
Graham Wright  
 
Activities lead   
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling: Paths 4 All theme lead  

Cllr Kevin Daley: Rural Access theme lead  

  

Protect the environment and reduce carbon footprint  

Cllr Robert Yuill  
 
In the open floor session the meeting then received an update from Philip 
Wilkinson, the Police and Crime Commissioner. He stated that since his election 
10 months ago he had undertaken major consultation and identified many 
people had not been happy with the service they were receiving from the police, 
and he had instituted a plan to improve services. 
 

Page 3



Page 4 of 7 
 
 

He stated it would shortly be announced that Wiltshire Police was to be placed 
into special measures. He said that he and the Chief Constable had already 
started to put in place mitigating strategies to address concerns, which was 
already having an effect. He also discussed operations focusing on drug dealers 
in the community, and cross agency work to develop bespoke packages to 
target anti-social behaviour.  
 
Inspector Tina Osborn then spoke to the written update from the agenda, noting 
an increase in burglaries of non-dwellings in the area. 
 
John Derryman on behalf of Speedwatch provided an update on efforts to 
improve performance, data and recruitment, with data now being accepted into 
police systems to enable deployment decisions. 
 
The Board discussed the above updates and sought details from the speakers, 
including on the logging of non-injury accidents, getting communications into 
very local publications and the Commissioner’s plans to improve services. 
 
A presentation was then received from the Bakehouse Mental Health & 
Wellbeing Support Group, Mental Elf. The group had been running from 
locations in Amesbury for 12 years and was now set up in Durrington, working 
with local groups to reduce the stigma of mental health and provide support. 
 
After the Health and Wellbeing Group item Councillor Robert Yuill then provided 
an update on the Environment and reducing carbon footprint. He emphasised 
the importance of the new subgroup, and to delivery on achievable and 
measurable outcomes, and noted council measures such as upgrading its 
housing stock. There was discussion of projects in Amesbury to increase 
biodiversity. 
 
There was then an extended discussion on methods of travel in the countryside, 
speed limits, and areas where it was not safe to walk. Members discussed the 
process for seeking to implement changes, with concerns raised that accidents 
would need to occur for changes to be actioned. The Chairman sought 
additional details to look into the matter further. 

36   Appointments to Outside Bodies and Working Groups 2022/23 

 Following presentation of proposals it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint Members as Lead representatives to Outside Bodies as 
follows:  
  
o Stonehenge World Heritage Site Steering Group: Cllr Kevin Daley  
o A303 Stonehenge Steering Group: Cllr Kevin Daley  
  

Page 4



Page 5 of 7 
 
 

To reconstitute and appoint to the LHFIG:  
o Cllr Graham Wright  
  
To note the terms of reference for the LHFIG as set out in Appendix C 
(pages 97 – 100)  

37   Positive activities for young people 

 Councillor Mark Verbinnen provided an update on youth activities in the 
community area. He stated this was a top priority for the board, noting the 
correlation with efforts to reduce crime and improve education results. He 
discussed intentions to work closer with the schools and how to inform parents 
of activities in their areas. 
 
He then presented youth grant applications which had been reviewed by the 
local youth network. 
 
On the nomination of Councillor Verbinnen, seconded by Councillor Graham 
Wright, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To award £1380.00 to Amesbury Town Council towards the Stockport 
Avenue Youth Area. 
 
To award £1913.19 towards phase 2 of the Rural Youth Project, to include 
£418.60 from the capital funds. 
 
Reason: The grants met the grants criteria. 

38   Health & Wellbeing Group 

 Councillor Dr Monica Devendran provided an update on Health and Wellbeing 
Group activities. She stated a meeting would be held on 6 September with 
organisations to discuss cooperative efforts, and on 15 December a night would 
be held to recognise volunteers of the community for their hard work supporting 
the Board and health and wellbeing efforts. 
 
She then introduced grant applications relating to health and wellbeing. 
 
Following presentation from grant applicants, and on the proposal of Councillor 
Devendran, seconded by Councillor Graham Wright, it was 
 
Resolved: 
 
To award £808.16 toward ‘almost wild camping’ for bereaved parents, to 
Bluesky Retreat. 
Reason: The grants met the grants criteria. 
 

Page 5



Page 6 of 7 
 
 

Following presentation from grant applicants, and on the proposal of Councillor 
Devendran, seconded by Councillor Kevin Daley, it was 
 
Resolved: 
 
To award £850.00 towards Silver Amesbury 2022 (including Durrington and 
surrounding villages. 
Reason: The grants met the grants criteria. 
 
The Board also noted a grant for £150.00 had been approved by the Community 
Engagement Manager under delegated authority to Chat Café Evergreen Court 
towards a coffee morning. 

39   Update from the Community Area Transport Group (CATG) 

 The Chairman introduced an update on the new model for Local Highways and 
Footpath Improvement Groups (LHFIG) which were previously known as 
Community Area Transport Groups (CATG). The groups would now be able to 
improve or repair existing infrastructure, as well as investing in new 
infrastructure as before, more funding was available, and as the name indicated 
footpath improvements were also included. 
 
Details were provided of high priority schemes in progress, and at the 
conclusion of the update it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 

1) To note the discussions from the Stonehenge CATG meeting held on 13 
April 2022. 
 

2) To confirm the high priority schemes. 
 

3) To approve the funding recommendation for  1-22-1 Orcheston 20mph 
speed limit assessment. 

40   Community Area Grants 

 At the Chairman’s invitation, Councillor Robert Yuill, Vice-Chairman, introduced 
the grants to the Committee and invited applicants to speak to their requests. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, and on the motion of Councillor Robert Yuill, 
seconded by Councillor Mark Verbinnen, it was, 
 
Decision 
Durrington Amateur Dramatics Society was awarded £2750.00 towards 
new staging. 
Reason - The application met the Community Area Grants Criteria. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, and on the motion of Councillor Robert Yuill, 

Page 6



Page 7 of 7 
 
 

seconded by Councillor Mark Verbinnen, it was, 
 
Decision 
Catholic Church of Christ the King was awarded £1600.00 towards 
Automated External Defibrilator for Catholic Church and surrounding 
retirement residences. 
Reason - The application met the Community Area Grants Criteria. 

41   Urgent items 

 There were no urgent items. 

42   Close 

 It was noted that the next meeting of the Amesbury Area Board would be held 
on 22 September 2022. 
 
The Chairman thanked everyone for attending. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

 
 
   

 

 

 

 

 

Service :   Leisure, Culture and Communities      

Further Enquiries to: Rhys Schell, Service Manager, Engagement and Partnerships 

Date Prepared:  22/08/2022 

Direct contact:   rhys.schell@wiltshire.gov.uk   

 

Engagement and Partnerships Team 
 
The new staffing structure for the Engagement and Partnerships team comes into place from  
1 September and introduces three officer levels of support to local communities and Area Boards. 
Officers will work collaboratively across community areas, however, locally named contacts remain 
available for Councillors, partners and residents to directly engage with. The service will work with 
communities in an innovative and proactive way and empower them to do even more for 
themselves and to deliver to the Wiltshire Council Business Plan. A brief overview of the respective 
duties are set out below.  
 

 Strategic Engagement and Partnerships Manager 
 
The six Strategic Engagement and Partnership Managers (SEPMs) will hold overall responsibility for 
Area Board delivery and the development of the local Area Board work plan in conjunction with the 
local Councillors. The SEPMs are the main points of contact for local Councillors, strategic partners, 
community volunteers and leaders. Each SEPM will lead an organisational theme, which includes 
children and young people, equality, diversity and inclusion, the environment, economic regeneration 
and older and vulnerable adults, however, this is not an exhaustive list and will be reviewed regularly. 
The SEPMs will drive this area forwards across communities and develop exciting link ups between 
council services and the community to provide excellent information, insight and evidence sharing 
between parties.   
 

 Area Board Delivery Officer 
 
Three dedicated officers that facilitate and support Area Board delivery in an innovative way. The 
delivery officers will build exceptional relationships with the voluntary and community sector and 
other key local partners to facilitate projects and initiatives that support the objectives of the Area 
Board work plans. They will be actively involved in Area Board business meetings, engagement 
activities, events and working groups to deliver exceptional local and organisational outcomes.  

 

 Area Board Support Officer  
 
Three Area Board Support Officers will oversee and effectively implement all grant funding 
processes. This includes eligibility assessment, reporting, payments, impact analysis, budget 
monitoring and audit. The Area Board Support Officers will collate and assess data on behalf of the 
team, facilitate regular communication through online platforms such as Our Community Matters and 
respond to resident enquiries. They report to the Strategic Engagement and Partnership Managers. 

Briefing Note 

 Engagement and Partnerships Team 
Structure  

August 2022 
 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

mailto:rhys.schell@wiltshire.gov.uk


 

Structure Visual 

 

 The post holders are as follows: 
 

 Andrew Jack, (01225 713109 or andrew.jack@wiltshire.gov.uk) Strategic Engagement and 
Partnerships Manager - Malmesbury, Marlborough, Royal Wootton Bassett and Cricklade 

 Ros Griffiths, (01225 718372 or ros.griffiths@wiltshire.gov.uk) Strategic Engagement and 
Partnerships Manager - Corsham, Chippenham and Calne 

 Liam Cripps, (01225 713143 or liam.cripps@wiltshire.gov.uk) Strategic Engagement and 
Partnerships Manager - Bradford on Avon, Trowbridge and Warminster 

 Richard Rogers, (07771547522 or richard.rogers@wiltshire.gov.uk ) Strategic Engagement 
and Partnerships Manager - Melksham, Devizes and Pewsey 

 Graeme Morrison, (01225 713573 or graeme.morrison@wiltshire.gov.uk ), Strategic 
Engagement and Partnerships Manager - Westbury, Amesbury, Tidworth 

 Karen Linaker, (01722 434697 or karen.linaker@wiltshire.gov.uk) Strategic Engagement 
and Partnerships Manager - South West, Salisbury, Southern Wiltshire 
 

 David Holker, Area Board Support Officer (North) 

 Catherine Russell, Area Board Support Officer (South)  
 

The three vacant Area Board Delivery Officer roles and the central Area Board Support Officer role 
are currently being recruited to.  

Briefing prepared by: Rhys Schell, Service Manager, Engagement and Partnerships 

Report Date: 22/08/2022 

 

Page 10



 

 
 
   

 

Service: Electoral Services 

Date prepared:  20 June 2022 

Further enquiries to: Caroline Rudland Head of Electoral Services 

Direct contact: elections@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 

Each year the statutory Annual Canvass process takes place between June - November.  This is an 
audit to ensure the electoral register is accurate and all those people entitled to vote are registered. 

Forms will be sent to all properties in July.  We encourage everyone to check the information is correct 
and use the contact details on the form to update their details as appropriate, preferable by using the 
online or telephone service as this is a quicker and efficient option. 

Some households will be required to respond where other households only need to if there is a change 
in the information shown on the form.  Full details will be explained on the form. 

If you can disseminate the information within your parishes, and encourage households to respond as 
soon as possible, it will save further reminders being sent. 

The final process for those households that do not respond to the initial and reminder form, is to employ 
canvassers to door knock to encourage a response.  This will take place during September. 

However, hopefully the number of properties to door knock can be significantly reduced if households 
respond to the forms so, please encourage your communities to do so. 

 

 

 

 

 

Area Board Briefing Note – Annual Canvass 
 

 

 

Page 11





 

 
 
   

 

Service: Post 16 Skills and Participation  

Date prepared:  8th August 2022 

Further enquiries to: Catherine Brooks – Employment and Skills Officer 

Direct contact: Catherine.brooks@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 

 

The Post 16 Skills and Participation team are on hand to support young people aged 16 – 17 years 
who are NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training) or at risk of becoming NEET.  

 

The EET (Education, Employment or Training) service will work 1-1 with young people to support them 
and help them understand the local offer, whether that is Sixth Form, College, Traineeships or 
Apprenticeships. Or other local programmes which offer employability support, confidence building, life 
skills, functional skills in Maths and English for example.  

 
With the aim to re-engage them back into Education, Employment or Training.  

 

You can find more information and how to refer a young person – or yourself on our Work Wiltshire 
website – www.workwiltshire.co.uk/young  

 

The Work Wiltshire website also holds a vast amount of information around all things Employment and 
Skills, for the wider community, no matter your age for example apprenticeship information or for those 
with barriers to work and support for Ukraine refugees.  

 

Follow our Social Media pages for fresh content and local opportunities.  

 

Twitter - @WorkWiltshire 

Instagram - @young_workwiltshire – for young people  

 

Any questions or more information? Please email Catherine Brooks, Employment and Skills Officer  

 

Catherine.brooks@wiltshire.gov.uk  

 

Area Board Briefing Note –  

Post 16 Skills and Participation Offer 
 

 

 

Page 13

http://www.workwiltshire.co.uk/young
mailto:Catherine.brooks@wiltshire.gov.uk




 
 

Partner Update – Wiltshire Centre for Independent Living – xxx Area Board 

 

Report author: Mary Reed  

Organisation name: Wiltshire Centre for Independent Living   

Date: 23/06/22 

Partner update – xxx Area Board 

 

Wiltshire Centre for Independent Living is a Disabled People’s user led organization.  

Our aim is to ensure that all people in Wiltshire can live the life they choose as valued members 

of their community.  

We support people to live independently and well and to have a voice. Our main activities are:  

- Supporting people who receive direct payment from Wilts Council to employ their own 

care  

- Promoting PA opportunities, with a PA register and promotional events (PAs provide 

paid care and support so that people can live independently)   

- Providing varied opportunities for disabled people to have a voice and co-produce local 

services.   

- Supporting all our communities to be inclusive and welcoming through the Make 

Someone Welcome campaign  

- Providing awareness raising sessions on disability issues and wider community 

development work 

- Providing a community connector service, working alongside people in the community 

who want to get back to living well after they have experienced issues that have 

prevented this 

We have several partners who commission us to do this work, including Wiltshire council, Wilts 

CCG and local Primary Care Networks (G.P practices)  

All our work starts with this question: ‘what does a Good life look like to you and what do you 

need to live it’.  We have used this question in our forums, consultations and all our 1:1 work, 

and we now have over 2000 responses from disabled people in Wiltshire.  Disability is defined 

broadly and includes physical disability, dual sensory, mental health issues, learning disability 

and Autism.      

The PowerPoint slide pack is a synthesis of all the responses to this question, providing a unique 

knowledge base for decision makers and planners.  The messages are simple, yet we know that 

we aren’t achieving these things for all our residents.  Please do use the findings in whatever way 

you find useful and contact us if you would like any further information/ conversations: 

mary@wiltshirecil.org.uk  

Page 15





What do people need to live their good 
life? 

P
age 17



In groups, in the community and in one-to-one conversations we have 

asked over 2000 people these 3 questions: 

- What does a good life look like to you? 

- What have you got to live that life? 

- What do you now need? 

P
age 18



We want what you want

Everyone wants the same things to live well: a home, equal and 

meaningful relationships, to be valued and have purpose, to be 

hopeful about the future.

People need choice and control to live good, 

independent lives. 

Everyone can be supported to live their good life. 

P
age 19



Homes not institutions

People want to live in a place called home, where they have choice and 

control over all aspects of their daily lives. 

The homes people live in need to fit with who they are, this might mean living 

with others or on their own.  

A house is not a home if people don’t feel 

that they belong and are safe in the place 

they live.  

P
age 20



Relationships REALLY matter 

At the heart of a good life are meaningful relationships.   

Having people around us that we trust, and love can support us all to 

live well 

Relationships work best when people value each 

other as equals.

P
age 21



Real connection in real communities

Community is people not places.

People want to be part of their community; a valued and active member.  

People might need some support to ‘Access their community’.  Support works best 

when it helps people to meet with others, help each other out, and enjoy each others 

company.  

Communities need to be fully accessible, accepting 

and safe for people 

P
age 22



We may well need support, but we want the right 

support
Independent living does not mean living without support. 

Support works best when provided by people that are liked, known, and trusted and 

is led by the people receiving it, enabling them to get on with their day to day lives. 

Support to help people get back on track works best when its about relationship 

building and maintaining. 

The right support at the right time can stop people 

finding themselves in a crisis or unable to cope.

P
age 23



We are not there yet
‘Written off for being different’  

There are many examples of people feeling 

excluded from normal everyday life, which includes 

our places of work and our communities.  

We now need to act and ensure that every Wiltshire 

resident and every professional involved in the 

health and social care system play their part to 

ensure that people 

get to live the lives they deserve.

P
age 24



P
age 25



We start today! 

You have the power to create positive change! 

As local change makers you can influence, design and 
develop your ‘community’ and make sure everything in it 
works for you.

P
age 26



We are here to make a difference

Be hopeful, be ambitious… 

We need BIG IDEAS

Think risky, think ‘good 
trouble’  

P
age 27





WILTSHIRE POLICE

Proud to serve and protect our communities www.wiltshire.police.uk  |       Facebook/wiltshirepolice  |       Twitter @wiltshirepolice  |       LinkedIn/company/wiltshirepolice

Area Board Update
Amesbury Community Policing Team
September 2022

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6



Your CPT - Amesbury
Inspector: Tina Osborn

Neighbourhood Sergeant: Sgt Alanna Wakeford

Amesbury Rural
PC Juliet Cox
PCSO Mary Carty
PCSO Michael Farebrother

Town Centre
PC Emma Smith
PCSO Mark Douse

Tidworth
PC Sharon Duggan
PCSO Dan Catterick

Ludgershall
PC Sharon Duggan
PCSO Pippa Brewer

P
age 30



Performance – 12 Months to June 2022

Stop and Search information for Amesbury CPT

During the 12 months leading to May 2022, 71 stop and searches were 
conducted in the Amesbury area of which 50.7% related to a search for 
controlled drugs.

During 71.8% of these searches, no object was found. In 23.9% of cases, an 
object was found. Of these cases 71.8% resulted in a no further action 
disposal; 15.5% resulted in police action being taken; 7.0% resulted in an 
arrest.

Of the stop and search subjects who defined their ethnicity:
• White – 62 stop and searches
• Black or Black British – 1 stop and search
• Mixed – 1 stop and search

Crime Type Crime Volume % of Crime

Totals 2,833 100.0

Violence without injury 530 18.7

Violence with injury 466 16.4

Criminal damage 400 14.1

Stalking and harassment 312 11.0

Public order offences 251 8.9

Other crime type 874 30.9

• Wiltshire Police recorded crime reports a YoY increase 
of 10.5% in the 12 months to June 2022 and continues 
to have one of the lowest crime rates in the country per 
1,000 population.

• Wiltshire Police has seen a 18.1% increase in violence 
without injury crimes in the 12 months to June 2022.  

• In June 2022, we received:
• 9,427 ‘999’ calls, which we answered within 8 

seconds on average;
• 11,522 ‘101’ calls, which we answered within 16 

seconds on average;
• 12,522 CRIB calls, which we answered within 2 

minutes and 27 seconds on average.
• In June 2022, we also attended 1,718 emergency 

incidents within 9 minutes and 36 seconds on average.

Crime Type Crime Volume % of Crime

Totals 42,401 100.0

Violence without injury 7,456 17.6

Violence with injury 6,268 14.8

Criminal damage 5,139 12.1

Stalking and harassment 4,172 9.8

Public order offences 4,104 9.7

Other crime type 15,262 36.0

Force Amesbury CPT

P
age 31



Performance – Hate Crime Overview

Number of 
Crimes

Change 
(number) Change (%)

Total 39 -4 -9.3%
Prejudice – Racial 25 -11 -30.6%
Prejudice – Sexual orientation 9 3 50.0%
Prejudice - Disability 5 1 25.0%
Prejudice - Religion 0 0 0.0%
Prejudice - Transgender 0 0 0.0%

Year on year comparison June 2021 to June 2022 (note: an individual crime can 
be tagged with more than one prejudice type e.g. sexual orientation & 
transgender)

Force Hate Crime (6 months to June 2022)

Hate Crime is reporting as stable, with a slight loss of 
seasonality since the impact of Covid. Volumes are now 
reporting flatter across the year. Year on year reporting 
increases in Transgenger and Sexual Orientation related 
hate which follows National trends.

Work by the Hate Crime Silver Scrutiny Panel on  hate 
crime video to raise awareness of Hate Crime and how 
to report it, including details surrounding how the 
Criminal Justice System responds to it is ongoing. There is 
an increased focus on Out of Court Disposal outcomes 
relating to Hate Crimes. 

Force Amesbury CPT

P
age 32



Local Priorities & Updates

Priority Update

ASB
Officers have carried out targeted patrols in and around Holders Field, Sidbury Circular and Forest Court over the 
last month following complaints regarding ASB and excessive noise.  We have engaged with a number of youth 
and appropriate and proportionate action has been taken when dealing with any related offences.

Non dwelling 
burglaries

Whilst we have seen a significant reduction in reported non-dwelling burglaries across the area, we have 
continued to carry out a number of proactive operations throughout the summer months.  These proactive 
operations will continue in the coming months, to disrupt possible offending and gathering intelligence where 
possible.

Community Speed 
Watch

Officers from the neighbourhood and response teams have continued to support our CSW colleagues where 
possible out in the community.

Rural Crime
High visibility patrols conducted targeting Rural Crime, Poaching, Hare Coursing & Dog attacks on livestock at 
Viney’s Farm, Ratfyn Farm, Park Farm & Countess Farm. Heightened patrols at present due to increased national 
threat level in thefts of fertilizer & diesel.

P
age 33



Local Priorities & Updates Continued

Priority Update

School Visits With the new school term commencing, the Neighbourhood team will be conducting regular schools visits and will 
continue to deliver schools talks on topics such as dangers of drug use, knife crime, ASB etc.

Rogue Traders
During the summer months we tend to receive reports of rogue traders operating across the area. Officers have 
carried out several proactive operations with our partner agencies. A number of persons have been checked with 
regards to the services they are advertising and providing to the community to ensure the work is legitimate. 

Vulnerability 
Patrols / Closure 
Notices

A number of Closure Notices on properties have been obtained in both Amesbury and Tidworth. This is to protect 
those vulnerable people living there and to deter visits by criminals who may wish to exploit them.  All premises 
have been regularly visited to provide reassurance to the residents and to enforce any potential breaches.

P
age 34



Useful Links
For more information on Wiltshire Police’s performance please visit:

• PCC’s Website - https://www.wiltshire-pcc.gov.uk/

• HMICFRS Website - https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/police-
forces/wiltshire/

• Police.uk - https://www.police.uk/pu/your-area/wiltshire-police/

• For information on what crimes and incidents have been reported in the 
Amesbury Community Policing Team area, visit     
https://www.police.uk/pu/your-area/wiltshire-police/amesbury/ to view a crime 
and incident map and find links to more detailed data

P
age 35

https://www.wiltshire-pcc.gov.uk/
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/police-forces/wiltshire/
https://www.police.uk/pu/your-area/wiltshire-police/


Get Involved

Keep up to date with the latest news and 
alerts in your area by signing up to our 
Community Messaging service –
www.wiltsmessaging.co.uk

Follow your CPT on social media
• Amesbury Police Facebook
• Amesbury Police Twitter

Find out more information on your CPT area 
at: www.wiltshire.police.uk and here 
www.wiltshire-pcc.gov.uk

P
age 36

http://www.wiltsmessaging.co.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/Amesburypolice/
https://twitter.com/amesburycpt
http://www.wiltshire.police.uk/
http://www.wiltshire-pcc.gov.uk/


Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2021 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 37

Agenda Item 7





Page 39





 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

03 Item Update 
Actions and 
recommendations 

Who 

 Date of MS Teams meeting: 27th July 2022 

1a CATG change to Local Highway & Footway Improvement Groups (LHFIG) 

 

There have been changes to the format of the CATG as agreed in the budget for 2022/23.  The groups names have been changed to Local 
Highway & Footway Improvement Groups (LHFIG), there is additional funding and the scope of works the groups can implement has been 
widened.  The new process has been ratified by Cabinet.  The process for submitting issues is unchanged therefore continue as set out below: 
 
Please see link to complete the highway improvements form: https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/article/6149/Local-Highway-and-Footway-
Improvement-Groups and submit to LHFIGrequests@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 

1b. Attendees and apologies 

 Present: 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Apologies: 

Cllr Graham Wright (Chair, WC), Cllr Kevin Daley (WC), Cllr Mark 
Verbinnen (WC), Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling (WC), Cllr Monica Devendran 
(WC), Rhiann Surgenor (WC Highways), Richard Harris & David 
Hassett (Shrewton PC), Rae Owen (Woodford & Durnford PC), Andy 
Shuttleworth (Winterbourne Stoke PC), Steven Black (South Newton 
PC), Steve Cannon (Bulford PC), Peter Paul (Durrington TC), 
 

 

 

Kate Davey (WC Highways), Cllr Robert Yuill (WC), Graham Jenkins 

(Bulford PC), Jacqui Abbott (WC), Spencer Drinkwater (WC), Nikki 

Spreadbury Clew (Shrewton PC) 

 

 

 

  

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 13

https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/article/6149/Local-Highway-and-Footway-Improvement-Groups
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/article/6149/Local-Highway-and-Footway-Improvement-Groups
mailto:LHFIGrequests@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

2. Notes of last meeting 

  The notes of the last meeting held on 13th April 2022 were accepted as 
a true record. 
 

Noted and agreed.  

3. Financial Position 

 

 
 

See Finance sheet. 2022/23 allocation is £35,462.00.  2021/22 
underspend was £55,425.48 and the current commitments total 
£50,237.74 giving a remaining budget of £49,209.17. 
 

Noted and agreed.  

4. Top 5 Priority Schemes 

a) 1-21-13 
Great Wishford – 
gateway/planter 

It has been brought to the attention of Great Wishford Parish Council 
by villagers that the three access roads into the village could be greatly 
improved by a gateway / planter.  The roads are narrow so they only 
request it on one side near the village signs.  A resident has offered to 
be responsible for the aftercare of the planters.  A councillor has 
already had plans drawn up. 
 
No representative present at the July meeting therefore this issue has 
been deferred.  Request for representative to attend next meeting to 
promote this issue. 
 
Group agreed to support this issue.  Site meeting undertaken in 
December 2021.  Proposal plan attached to end of the agenda.  Cost 
estimates as follows: 
**Prices may vary depending on style of gate chosen by PC 
Site 1 Langford Rd - £1,727.44 (CATG £1,295.58, PC £431.86) 
Site 2 West Street - £1,611.83 (CATG £1,208.87, PC £402.96) 
Site 3 Station Rd - £3,285.38 (CATG £2,464.04, PC £821.35) 
 

ACTION 
Monitor and implement 

 
KD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 42



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

Group agreed funding of all sites.  Great Wishford PC confirmed 
contribution. 
 
Update: Order has been placed with contractor with anticipated 
implementation later this calendar year. 
 

b) 1-21-15 
Shrewton, London Road – 
Traffic Calming 

Excessively high volume of vehicles using this route as a 'rat run' to 
avoid the A303.  See attached PDF titled ‘substantive bid application 
2021’ (3 attachements).  Traffic calming scheme along London Road 
to deter non local traffic. 
 
Liaised with Shrewton PC to refine plan and substantive bid 
submission.  CATG chair agreed contribution of £12,500 towards the 
bid.  Substantive bid submitted September 2021.  Awaiting outcome. 
Substantive bid process complete.  Results now published and 
unfortunately London Road, Shrewton were not successful this time. 
 
Meeting held on 23/3/22 with Cllr Wright and Shrewton PC to discuss 
amendments to design ready for 2022/23 submission. 
 
Update: Site visit undertaken earlier this month to determine whether 
pedestrian facilities are achievable as part of this project.  Made 
contact with street lighting to determine if all LED work is complete and 
see if this is sufficient for this project to be implemented.  Street 
lighting assessment required to determine accurate estimate.  Funding 
required £2,500 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG agreed to support 
and fund a street lighting 
assessment. 
 
ACTION 
Order street lighting 
assessment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
KD 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c) 1-21-21 
Bulford, junction 15 & 16 
roundabouts 

There are inadequate safe crossing points for pedestrians on both 
Junction 15 & 16 in Bulford Village. Bulford Parish Council has raised 
this issue with leader of the council on numerous occasions and the 
local Councillor fully supports our case.  Council requests that 
pedestrian crossing surveys are carried out at both junctions.  
Supporting information attached to end of the agenda. 
 

DISCUSSION 
Bulford PC have confirmed 
25% contribution.  LHFIG 
agreed to support and fund 
project. 
 
ACTION 
Design and implement 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
KD 

P
age 43



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

GW conducted site visit with PC to assess pedestrian issues 
surrounding mini roundabouts.  Bulford PC confirmed this is the No 1 
priority. 
 
Update: KD attended site on 23/5/22 with Cllr Verbinnen and Graham 
Jenkins to discuss proposals for informal crossing points.  Please see 
attached proposal plans for discussion.  Cost estimate is in the region 
of £9,000 (LHFIG = £6,750, 25% contribution = £2,250) 

 

d) 1-21-24 
Amesbury Church Street 

Residents entrance is blocked by cars parking for hours on end in front 
of the gates in the" KEEP CLEAR" Zone and deliveries park across the 
gates (double Yellows lines and" Keep Clear" Area ) when delivering 
to the Dunkirk club and the Antrobus Arms Hotel. This can take two 
hours to find the driver sometimes. Second issue is that, cars wait in 
the "KEEP CLEAR" zone to go into the traffic calming so its difficult to 
gain access to the driveway.  Request for bollards in the carriageway 
to ensure vehicles wait behind them before entering the traffic calming 
area along with no waiting sign in front of bollards. 
 
Duputy Major confirmed this is Amesbury TC No 1 priority.  Issues with 
on street parking on both sides of Church Street.  Obstruction is for the 
police to enforce.  Site meeting arranged for 12/04/22 to discuss 
options. 
 
Update: Please see list of waiting restriction requests attached to end 
of agenda for discussion and funding approval to assess a batch for 
the Stonehenge area.  Full batch Cost estimate in the region of 
£6,000-£7,000.  Further correspondence received from Cllr Devendran 
in relating to providing a more extensively engineered solution to this 
issue to be discussed further by the group. 
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION 
Ongoing parking and 
access issues, consider 
temporary solutions and 
move forward with waiting 
restrictions.  LHFIG agreed 
to support and fund waiting 
restriction batch. 
 
ACTION 
Progress waiting restrictions 
to legal consulation stage. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
KD 
 

P
age 44



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

5 Priorities already agreed, not yet implemented 

a) 1-21-5 
B3083 between A303 and 
Berwick St James 

The southern B3083 runs from the A303 in the north at Winterbourne 
Stoke and travels in a general southwards direction through Berwick St 
James and onwards towards Stapleford where it joins the A36. The 
subject of this letter is the section between Winterbourne Stoke and 
Berwick St James and, the area either side of the junction between the 
B3083 and the public footpaths known as WST01/BSJA6. 
 
Please refer to item attached to agenda for full details of issues and 
request for new infrastructure. 
 
At February meeting it was agreed to defer to next meeting and 
request a respresentative is present to discuss the issue further. 
 
At July meeting group agreed to move to top priority list and for KD to 
investigate signing improvements.  KD and RS met with Andy 
Shuttleworth on site in August. 
 
Proposal sent to Winterbourne Stoke PC and Berwick St James PC for 
review.  Please see attached proposal for signing and road marking 
improvements.  The cost estimate is £2,000 (CATG 75% = £1,500, PC 
25% = £500) 
 
Group agreed to go ahead with the scheme and for WSPC to 
contribute but not BSTJ PC due to it being a small parish with limited 
funds. 
 
Signing works complete.  Road marking to be laid during spring 2022. 
 
Speed limit assessment submitted to consultant for completion.  
Winterbourne Stoke have confirmed contribution of the full 25% £625 
for completion of the speed limit assessment. 
 

ACTION 
Monitor and inform relevant 
parties once assessments 
are complete. 

 
KD 
 
 
 
 

P
age 45



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

Update: Attended meeting with consultant during June to discuss 
speed limit assessments.  Consultant due to complete assessment by 
end of August at the latest. 
 

b) 1-21-10, 1-21-11, 1-21-12 
C42 Woodford Valley – 

speeding and lack of footways 

Discussion at the February meeting on issues 1-21-10, 1-21-11 and 1-
21-12.  PC and residents explained concerns over speeding traffic and 
lack of footways.  All agreed to take a holistic approach to combine the 
Woodford issues and firstly look at speed limit review throughout 
Woodford Valley.  Group agreed to fund assessment at £2,500 subject 
to Woodford PC contribution of 25%, TBC. 
 
AC suggested PC instruct parish steward to look at clearing 
undergrowth by railings.  It was suggested the parish build an 
evidence log to be submitted to the consultant for consideration when 
the review is conducted. 
 
KD arranged site meeting with Woodford Parish Council which took 
place on 24th June 2021.  Woodford Parish Council have confirmed 
25% contribution towards the speed limit assessment.  Woodford PC 
to confirm the extent of the assessment before I instruct the consultant 
to start.  Woodford PC also confirmed they will arrange for the 
vegetation on the hill at the southern end of Upper Woodford to be 
cleared in order for us to assess whether a virtual footway can be 
accommodated. 
 
Extent plan confirmed with PC.  Speed limit assessment submitted to 
consultant for action.   Due to Covid-19 restrictions there is still a large 
backlog of traffic surveys to be completed across the county.  I will 
continue to chase this speed limit assessment and provide an update 
in due course. 
 
Update: Speed limit assessment final report and recommendation 
sent to Woodford Parish Council during April 2022.  Subsequent 
correspondance between KD and Woodford PC regarding the 

ACTION 
Cllr Daley to escalate to 
Cabinet Member to request 
recommendations are 
overturned. 
 
Woodford PC to instruct 
Parish steward to clear and 
clean existing signing for 
better visibility. 

 
Cllr 
Daley 
 
 
 
Woodfo
rd PC 
 
 

P
age 46



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

recommendation and virtual footway where KD outlined criteria and 
reasoning behind the results during May/June 2022. 

c) Durnford Speed limits Concerns over the lack of speed limit through Great Drunford village.  
Request for a 30mph speed limit to be implemented. 
 
Durnford PC discussed issues in more details.  Expressed there is no 
speed limit at all or any footways.  Cllr Daley supports this issue and 
so do the rest of the group.  Group agreed to progress.  Contribution 
confirmed by Durnford PC. 
 
Issues highlighted with planning apps and process with highways 
development control.  Cllr Wright committed to investigating this issue. 
 
Update: Attended meeting with consultant during June to discuss 
speed limit assessments.  Consultant due to complete assessment 
end of August at the latest. 
 

ACTION 
Monitor and inform relevant 
parties once assessments 
are complete. 

 
KD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

d) Enford – C32 Coombe & East 
Chisenbury 

Request for a speed limit assessment to reduce the existing 30mph 
speed limit to 20mph.  This has been submitted as two separate 
requests but the Parish Council would like the group to agree for these 
to be combined into one assessment cost. 
 
No representative at the meeting.  However, the chair Cllr Wright, Cllr 
Blair Pilling, Kate Davey and Enford PC had a subsequent meeting to 
discuss the speed limit assessment.  It was agreed to proceed.  
Contribution confirmed by Enford PC. 
 
Update: Resource allocated to undertaking assessment, traffic 
surveys currently being submitted for processing. 
 

ACTION 
Monitor and inform relevant 
parties once assessments 
are complete. 

 
KD 
 

P
age 47



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

e) 1-21-17 
A345 Netheravon 
No. 1 Priority 

Road Safety and Speeding.  The Parish Council would like the speed 
limit reduced to 40 mph.   There are houses and flats along the edge 
of the A345 and 8 turnings to the east of the road plus a Caravan Park 
and other collections of houses which enter the A345.   Three of the 
turnings to the north have very poor visibility onto the A345 and many 
accidents plus fatalities have occurred over several years. 
 
Netheravon PC promoted issue and expressed they are wanting to 
use CSW if the limit can be reduced.  Group agreed to progress. 
Contirbution confirmed by Netheravon PC. 
 
Update: Attended meeting with consultant during June to discuss 
speed limit assessments.  Consultant due to complete assessment by 
end of August at the latest. 
 

ACTION 
Monitor and inform relevant 
parties once assessments 
are complete. 

 
KD 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. Other Priority schemes 

a) 1-20-15 
Durrington 20mph speed limit 
assessment 

The Roads listed below are without adequate footways and sit within 
the Conservation Area of the oldest parts of Durrington Village. These 
areas were never designed for modern traffic volumes and without 
footways pedestrians are at higher risk than other parts of the village. 
 
Roads to be included in 20mph assessment are: 
Hackthorne Road (full length) which leads to Church Street (full length) 
which leads to The Ham (no through rd). The north end of Bulford 
Road (from jnctn Church St to Glebe Road to include School Rd which 
is also a no through rd ).  
College Rd (full length). High Street from junction of Church Street to 
Ridgmount. 
 
Group agreed to fund 20mph assessment at £2,500.  Durrington TC 
agreed 25% contribution of £625.   
 

ACTION 
Monitor and oversee 
implementation in due 
course. 

 
KD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 48



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

Site visit undertaken by KD and traffic survey sites located.  No order 
for the survey work has been placed yet due to Covid-19 lockdown 
restrictions.  This work will be resumed when restrictions are eased. 
 
Assessments have now recommenced as Covid-19 restrictions have 
eased.  It is anticipated traffic surveys will be undertaken over the 
summer period with the report being finalised in the Autumn. 
 
Due to Covid-19 restrictions there is still a large backlog of traffic 
surveys to be completed across the county.  I will continue to chase 
this speed limit assessment and provide an update in due course. 
 
Group agreed to fund 20mph speed limit implementation.  Total costs 
approx. £11,000.  CATG £8,250, DTC 2,750. 
 
Update: Legal documents with the Traffic Regulation Order team for 
processing.  Consultation period from 30th June – 25th July 2022. 
 

 

b) 5795 
 
A3028 from Double Hedges 
approaching new roundabout - 
No waiting at any time 

A new path has been introduced between Bulford and Solstice Park 
Amesbury. Accordingly the approach pavement at the Bulford end has 
been widened parking bays marked on the opposite side of the road 
and a preferred crossing installed. People are now parking half on the 
kerb adjacent to this crossing vert near to the junction which is 
particularly dangerous. 
 
BPC asked for this scheme to be put on hold until the outcome of 
discussions with DIO regarding S106 works in the village. 
 
Process for requesting waiting restrictions is for the Town/Parish 
Council to complete request form and submit to Network Management 
for assessment when next review is completed.  Group agreed for this 
issue to be left open for now. 
 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG agreed to support 
and fund waiting restriction 
batch. 
 
ACTION 
Progress waiting restrictions 
to legal consulation stage. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
KD 
 

P
age 49

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/Areaboard/get_areaboard_issue.php?id=5795


 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

AC confirmed waiting restrictions are not proposed as part of the 
works.  JA invited project manager from DIO to attenda Area Board 
meeting. Group agreed to leave this on the agenda for now, Bulford 
PC to resolve at strategic level. 
 
AC confirmed double mini roundabout is now public highway. 
Pedestrian survey to be carried out post lockdown but currently 
unclear as to who will complete. 
 
KD has spoken with Network Management who have confirmed that 
the waiting restriction reviews are moving forward now Covid-19 
restrictions are easing.  This location is on the list ready to be 
assessed.  In the meantime if Bulford PC can supply photo evidence of 
the parking issues at this site it will help determine the extent of 
restrictions required. 
 
Bulford PC to supply photographic evidence of the extent of the 
issues.  KD chased timescale for review on 8th October 2021.  This 
issue has been referred to Network Management for action. 
 
Update: Please see list of waiting restriction requests attached to end 
of agenda for discussion and funding approval to assess a batch for 
the Stonehenge area.  Full batch Cost estimate in the region of £6,000 
- £7,000. 

c) 1-21-16 
Shrewton, Tanners Lane – 
damage to property 

Resident of No. 1 Tanners Lane is concerned that the corner of the 
property keeps getting hit by passing vehilces.  It is an old cob building 
and each time it is hit the resident is worried that it is causing structural 
damage as well as costing money to repair the cob and guttering.  
Request for bollard/pole to be installed on the corner to protect the 
property.  Please see attached photos at the end of the agenda. 
 
Site visit undertaken during September 2021.  Options for a solution to 
be discussed at the meeting. 
 

DISCUSSION 
Chair agreed to fully fund 
and progress road markings 
as proposed and continue 
monitoring the situation 
going forwards. 
 
If the issue is large vehicles 
coming from one direction, 
is it worth considering the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 50



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

Solutions to amend/add road markings and a bollard to be discussed 
at the meeting. 
 
Cllr Daley explained his site visit to this location with Cabinet Member 
for Highways Cllr Mark McClelland and the issues regarding property 
damage. Cllr Daley to chase option of rerouting idVerde vehicles in the 
other direction. 
 
KD to progress road marking adjustments in spring 2022. 
 
Further correspondence from the property owner in November 2021 
received, indicating its not only refuse vehicles but other lorries 
delivering along Tanners Lane or using it as a short cut.  Resident has 
suggest one tall post be installed at the corner of the property. 
 
Nikki Spreadbury Clew to send Cllr Wright email information on this 
issue.  Cllr Wright to look at site and discuss options with Shrewton PC 
and KD. 
 
Update: Please see attached proposal plan for discussion.  Cost 
estimate £1,000 (LHFIG = £750, 25% contribution = £250) 
 

feasibility of a one way 
system along Tanners Lane 
in the future. 
 
ACTION 
Implement road markings 
as proposed. 

 
 
 
 
 
KD 

d) 1-21-18 
C283 From Stoford bottom to 
A36 junction 
No. 1 Priority 

The C283 is a well known "rat-run" for traffic from the A360 to the A36; 
the volumes and speed of the traffic increase when there are 
difficulties upon the A303. There are no footpaths located on either 
side of the narrow road. Traffic speeds through the village in excess of 
the identified 30 mph restriction and is a danger to all inhabitants (both 
young and old) of the village. 
The traffic speed survey, performed in December 2019, identified - 

i) 85th percentile speed was 37.4mph. 
ii) 57.4% of recorded vehicles were exceeding the posted 

speed limit. 
 

DISCUSSION 
Waiting on results of traffic 
survey. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 51



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

Request for existing 30mph speed limit to be reduced to 20mph and 
for a pedestrian walkway from the upper entrance to the Mount 
Pleasant Estate to the A36 junction adjacent to the Swan public house. 
 
South Newton & Stoford PC discussed issues in more detail.  Cllr 
Daley supports issue. Action with PC to submit traffic survey in 
location where CSW takes place to determine a more recent average 
speed. 
 
PC contacted KD to clarify traffic survey procedure and they have 
submitted a request.  Add virtual footway to issue and investigate once 
survey is complete. 
 
Update: Chased traffic survey results during June, awaiting response. 
 

e) 1-21-20 
Durrington, A3028 mini 
roundabout junction with 
Bulford Road 

Concerns raised over the eastward travelling vehicles not giving way 
at the mini roundabout to traffic coming from Bulford Road.  Request 
for road marking improvements to include give way lining and sign. 
 
Leave this issue until it becomes No. 1 priority for Durrington TC. 
 
Durrington TC to discuss top priorities locally and clarify the direction 
in which this issue occurs. Group agreed to proceed with this project. 
 
Update: Mini roundabout road markings have recently been refreshed 
with the existing arrangement.  Additional road markings proposal 
attached to end of agenda.  £500 (LHFIG = £375, 25% contribution = 
£125). 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG agreed to fully 
support and fund proposed 
road markings. 
 
ACTION 
Implement road marking as 
proposed. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
KD 
 

f) 1-21-22 
Woodford, southern parish 
boundary between Avon 
Bridge and Avon Farm 

Four vehicles have left the road here in a year. All single vehicle 
incidents. Two crashed into south west side bringing down same BT 
pole, replaced twice by Open Reach. Two crashed north east side, 
one demolishing hedge, repaired by Little Durnford estate, one 
demolished bridge parapet next to it, which is still unrepaired after a 
year. 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG fully support and 
agree to fund the project. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 52



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

https://www.stratfordsubcastle.org.uk/post/off-road-towards-woodford 
https://www.stratfordsubcastle.org.uk/post/investigation-of-black-spot-
underway 
 
Parish boundary confirmed as location situated with Woodford Parish.  
Potential to explore warning signs to highlight hazards along this route. 
 
Update: Please see attached proposal plan for discussion.  Cost 
estimate in the region of £1,200 (LHFIG = £900, 25% contribution = 
£300). 

ACTION 
Woodford PC to confirm 
25% contribution before 
progressed. 

 
Woodfo
rd PC 

g) 1-22-1 
South Newton & Stoford A36 & 
C283 Village gates 

Traffic speeds through the village in excess of the identified 30mph 
restriction and is a danger to all inhabitants (both young and old) 
The Parish Council believes that the speed of vehicles entering the 
villages of South Newton and Stoford (A36 and C283) could be greatly 
improved (i.e. desreased) by the installation of village gateways. The 
gateways will create 'a sense of place' when drivers enter the village, 
and the physical measures designed such that drivers are required to 
slow down before entry. The village entrance and the speed limit is 
made more obvious to vehicle drivers. 
 
Request for three sets of village gates.  Two along the A36 and one 
along C283. 
 
Any request for infrstructure on the A36 needs to be sent to National 
Highways for consideration.  However, the CATG can consider village 
gates on C283 as a project if supported. Group agreed to proceed with 
this project. 
 
Update: Site visit during July identified feasibility of village gates on 
C283 as suitable.   Please see attached proposal plan for discussion.  
Cost estimate in the region of £5,000 (LHFIG = £3,750, 25% 
contribution = £1,250).  PC contribution confirmed via email 11.07.22. 
 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG agree to support and 
fund scheme,  PC agreed 
contribution. 
 
ACTION 
Progress and implement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
KD 
 

P
age 53

https://www.stratfordsubcastle.org.uk/post/investigation-of-black-spot-underway
https://www.stratfordsubcastle.org.uk/post/investigation-of-black-spot-underway


 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

h) 1-22-2 
Orcheston 20mph speed limit 

Orcheston has benefited from a 30mph speed limit since 2017.  
Nevertheless in the past 5 years there has been a considerable 
increase in delivery traffic (always against the clock) as well as being 
the first choice for 4X4 drivers accessing Salisbury Plain.  There are 
no pavement footpaths at all in the village and most cars are parked 
on the road.  Where vehicles are parked off the road, access visibility 
is routinely poor and involves gradual “edging out”.  When vehicles are 
parked opposite houses where residents have to “edge out”, there is 
no possibility of traffic avoiding vehicles “edging out”. Speed needs to 
be reduced. 
 
This matter was raised at the Parish Council in January 2022.  
Councillors supported a proposal to ask for a traffic survey to provide 
data as to the suitability of a proposed 20mph speed limit.  Cllr 
Christopher Coats, who has been active on the Stonehenge Tunnel 
group, volunteered to represent the views of the parish council at the 
CATG.  We recognise that 25% of the cost of the survey will be 
charged to Orcheston Parish Council. 
 
Group agreed to proceed with this project.  PC confirmed 25% 
contribution. 
 
Update: Resource allocated to undertaking assessment, traffic 
surveys currently being submitted for processing. 
 

ACTION 
Complete speed limit 
assessment and report 
recommendations in due 
course. 

 
KD 
 
 
 
 
 

7. 
 
New Requests / Issues 
 

a) 1-22-6 
Durrington issues 

1) Drop kerb required on Bulford Road East opposite Coronation Road 
Junction. 
2) Extension of public foot-way on A345 Netheravon Road South East 
side where it drops down to the old a345 road .Extend it to meet the 
new pedesrtrain crossing point that links Durrington To Larkhill. 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG agree to support and 
fund projects.  Durrington 
TC agreed 25% 
contribution. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 54



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

3) Continuation of Bollards outside the Chemists on Bulford Road 
(huge illegal parking issues). 
4) Numerous faded road markings a separate list is available for Cllr 
Graham Wright. 
5)  New fixing post required for 3 Welcome to Durrington Signs. 
 

ACTION 
1. Design and install 

 
2. Look at feasibility of 

pedestrian 
wayfinding sign. 
 

3. Design and install 
 

4. Outstanding list to 
be sent to RS 

 
5. Posts to be replaced 

Additions: 
6. Two street 

nameplates missing 
to be replaced. 

 
7. Additional WR at 

Bulford Road north 
to be investigated. 

 

 
RS 
 
KD 
 
 
 
RS 
 
Cllr 
Wright 
 
RS 
 
 
RS 
 
 
 
KD 

b) 1-22-7 
Amesbury Parsonage Road - 
road markings 

Parking opposite driveways to properties 131 and 133 Salisbury Road 
(who access their driveways from Parsonage Road) is causing 
constant access issues.  Request for white access protection bar 
marking opposite driveway access points to deter parking. 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG agreed that funding 
should be paid by resident 
no further action LHFIG. 
 
ACTION 
Remove and close. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
KD 

P
age 55



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

c) 1-22-8/11 
Amesbury waiting restrictions 

1) Archers Gate in vicinity of the school. 
2) Holders Road in vicinity of Stonehenge School. 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG agreed to support 
and fund waiting restriction 
batch. 
 
ACTION 
Progress waiting restrictions 
to legal consulation stage. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
KD 

d) 1-22-9 
Amesbury speed limit requests 

Request for reduction in speed limits on  Porton Road (40), Countess 
Road (40), Holders Road (30/20zone), Pendragon Way, Salisbury 
Street (30), High Street (30) and Church Street (30). 
 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG requested Amesbury 
TC confirm top priority for 
2022/23.  Amesbury 
confirmed support to 
progress Porton Road this 
financial year and agreed 
25% contribution. 
 
ACTION 
Agree assessment extent 
and submit to consultant. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
KD 

e) 1-22-10 
Amesbury village gates and 
planters 

The Town already has Historic Amesbury signage at the 8 entrance 
routes in to the Town, the purchasing and installing entrance gate and 
planters would make it more attractive to visitors and residents. 
 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG requested Amesbury 
TC confirm top priority for 
2022/23. 
 
ACTION 
Confirm top priority site to 
progress to implementation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Amesbu
ry TC 

f) 1-22-12 
Amesbury Flower Lane 
direction signs 

Request for direction signing to vet practice on Flower Lane. ACTION 
Check legal requirement for 
providing direction sign and 
report back to group. 
 

 
KD 

P
age 56



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

g) 1-22-13 
Amesbury Melor View road 
markings 
 
 
 

Parking issue to private car park at Melor View Amesbury.  Visitors to 
other properties are parking at entrance to the private car park and 
blocking entry/exit.  There used to be a yellow line across the entrance 
which has now faded.   Customer has requested to have a yellow box 
painted at the entrance to the car park. 
 

ACTION 
Request parking team to 
refresh markings. 

 
KD 

h) 1-22-14 
Amesbury Salisbury Street 
signing 

Request for larger taxi rank sign to indicate the area is for taxis to all 
road users. 

ACTION 
Amesbury TC agreed to 
ensure legal signs are 
visibility at all times and not 
obstructed by planters. 
 
Request parking team to 
refresh markings. 

 
Amesbu
ry TC 
 
 
 
KD 

i) 1-22-15 
Stoford Bottom drainage 

A road drain (located on the C283 Stoford Bottom, at the east end of 
the village) has been partly concreted over by a previous Stoford 
resident, preventing the grill from being raised; the drain is now 
completely blocked with "dross".  The concrete was installed a number 
of years ago to protect the bank from encroaching traffic, due to the 
narrowness of the road. The other road drains have been cleaned but 
the Parish Council have been informed this particular drain is 
inaccessible.  Large quantities of rain water wash off the road, 
adjacent housing estate and nearby fields; this is the first drain along 
the downhill slope.  Request to remove concrete to ensure access to 
gully for cleaning. 
 

ACTION 
Arrange for further 
investigate of the issue on 
site. 

 
RS 

j) 1-22-16 
Figheldean speed limits 

Requests to reduce the speed limit on the A345 from 50 MPH  to 40 
MPH through the village of Figheldean, to reduce the speed limit being 
50 MPH to 30 MPH on the High Street entering the village of 
Figheldean and to reduce the general speed limit of 30 MPH to 20 
MPH through the rest of the village of Figheldean and Ablington. 
 

DISCUSSION 
LHFIG agreed to wait for 
outcome of A345 
Netheravon speed limit 
assessment before 
agreeing a way forward for 
this request. 

 

P
age 57



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

 

7. Any other business 

 Contact details 
 
 

Add Cllr Damien Kuczera (Major of Amesbury) to Stonehenge LHFIG 
distribution list. 

 KD 

 Traffic survey request for 
Bulford PC 

Inform Bulford PC of process, link to request form and how to submit.  KD 

 Information from the Chair Chairman Cllr Wright provided reminder of process for reporting new 
issues and encouraged applications to be put forward to LHFIG. 

  

8.       

 TOP PRIORITY SCHEMES LISTED BELOW (SCHEMES HIGHLIGHTED IN YELLOW REQUIRE FUNDING APPROVAL FROM THE AREA 
BOARD, ITEMS IN GREY ARE ALREADY AGREED AND CURRENTLY IN PROGRESS): 
 

1. 1-21-10/12 Woodford Valley C42 speed limit assessment £2,500 (CATG £1,875, Woodford PC £625) 
2. 1-21-17 Netheravon A345 speed limit assessment £2,500 (CATG £1,875, Netheravon PC £625) 
3. Durnford speed limit assessment £2,500 (CATG £1,875, Durnford PC £625) 
4. 1-21-13 Great Wishford Village Gates £6,624.66 (CATG £4,968.49, Great Wishford PC £1,656.16 ) 
5. 1-21-5 Winterbourne Stoke/Berwick St James B3083 Speed Limit Assessment £2,500 (CATG £1,875, BSTJ PC £625) 
6. 1-20-15 Durrington 20mph speed limit implementation £11,000 (CATG £8,250, Durrington TC £2,750) 
7.1-22-1 Orcheston 20mph speed limit assessment £2,500 (CATG £1,875, Orcheston PC £625) 
8. 1-21-15 Shrewton London Road street lighting assessment £2,500 (LHFIG £2,500) 
9. 1-21-21 Bulford dropped kerbs and HFS treatment £9,000 (LHFIG 6,750, Bulford PC £2,250) 
10. 1-21-16 Shrewton Tanners Lane road markings £1,000 (LHFIG £1,000) 
11. 1-21-20 Durrington A3028 mini roundabout road markings £500 (LHFIG £500) 
12. 1-21-22 Woodford Avon Bridge warning signs £1,200 (LHFIG £900, Woodford PC £300 TBC) 
13. Batch 001 Waiting Restrictions for 2022/23 - £7,000 (LHFIG £7,000). 
14. 1-22-1 Stoford C283 village gate and road markings £5,000 (LHFIG £3,750, South Newton & Stoford PC £1,250) 
15. 1-22-6 Durrington issues approx. value £6,000 (LHFIG £4,500, Durrington TC £1,500) 
16. 1-22-9 Amesbury Porton Road Speed Limit Assessment £2,500 (LHFIG1,875, Amesbury TC £625) 
12.  

 
 

P
age 58



 
 

STONEHENGE LOCAL HIGHWAYS & FOOTWAYS IMPROVEMENT GROUP ACTION NOTES  
 

 

 

 

Amesbury Community Area Transport Group  

Highways Officer – Kate Davey 

 

1. Environmental & Community  Implications 
1.1. Environmental and community implications were considered by the CATG during their deliberations.  The funding of projects will 

contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of environmental, social and community wellbeing in the community area, the extent 
and specifics of which will be dependent upon the individual project. 

 

2. Financial Implications 
2.1. All decisions must fall within the Highways funding allocated to Amesbury Area Board. 
2.2. If funding is allocated in line with CATG recommendations outlined in this report, and all relevant 3rd party contributions are confirmed, 

Amesbury Area Board will have a remaining Highways funding balance of £20,434.17. 
 

3. Legal Implications 
3.1. There are no specific legal implications related to this report. 

 

4. HR Implications 
4.1. There are no specific HR implications related to this report. 

 

5. Equality and Inclusion Implications 
5.1 The schemes recommended to the Area Board will improve road safety for all users of the highway. 

 

6. Safeguarding implications  
6.1 There are no specific safeguarding implications related to this report. 

9.       

 Date of Next Meeting 26th October 2022 via MS Teams     

P
age 59



Stonehenge  CATG 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

BUDGET 22-23

£35,462.00 CATG ALLOCATION 22-23

£55,425.48 2021-22 underspend

Contributions

Woodford PC - speed limit assessment £625.00 Confirmed

Winterbourne Stoke PC - B3083 signing/lining improvements £250.00 Invoiced

Amesbury TC - Redworth Drive bollard £153.27 Invoiced

Netheravon PC - A345 speed limit assessment £625.00 Confirmed

Durnford PC - Speed limit assessment £625.00 Confirmed

Enford PC - speed limit assessment £625.00 Confirmed

Great Wishford PC - village gates £1,656.16 Confirmed

WSPC / BSTJ PC - speed limit assessment £625.00 confirmed

Durrington TC - 20mph speed limit implementation £2,750.00 Confirmed

Orcheston PC - 20mph speed limit assessment £625.00 Confirmed

Total Budget £99,446.91

Commitments carried forward 

CATG contribution to Shrewton London Rd Substantive Bid £12,500 Agreed

New schemes

Durrington 20mph speed limit assessment £2,500 Estimate

Woodford Valley speed limit assessment £2,500 Estimate

Winterbourne Stoke/Berwick St James - B3083 signing/lining £2,000 Actual

Amesbury Redworth Drive bollard £613 Actual

Netheravon A345 speed limit assessment £2,500 Estimate

Durnford speed limit assessment £2,500 Estimate

Enford speed limit assessment £2,500 Estimate

Great Wishford village gates £6,625 Estimate

B3083 Berwick St James speed limit assessment £2,500 Estimate

Durrington 20mph speed limit implementation £11,000 Estimate

Orcheston 20mph speed limit assessment £2,500 Estimate

Total commitment £50,237.74

Remaining Budget £49,209.17

P
age 60



19

L
a
tc

B 3085

16

Cross W

LAR
KH

ILL R
O

AD

Dorothymay
V

a
lsro

d
a

14

6

Garage

N
e
w

h
a
ve

n

1 to 18

18 20

4 S
ylv

a
n
 H

o
u
se

Shalima

BULFORD

Enn

3

5

ROAD

Tresses

E

1

R
O

B
IN

 H
IL

L
 L

A
N

E

S
h
e

lte
r

Loughrigg

A
 3

0
2
8

L
o

1

F
ro

o
m

 H
o
u
se

T
h

e
 P

la
za

G
arage

P
ro

vid
e
 S

L
O

W
 ro

a
d

 m
a
rkin

g
 to

D
ia

g
. N

o
. 1

0
2
4
 a

t 1
.6

m
 h

t.
A

d
ja

ce
n

t to
 ro

u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t

w
a
rn

in
g
 sig

n
.

P
ro

vid
e
 S

L
O

W
 ro

a
d

 m
a
rkin

g
 to

D
ia

g
. N

o
. 1

0
2
4
 a

t 1
.6

m
 h

t.
A

d
ja

ce
n

t to
 G

a
ra

g
e
.

P
ro

vid
e
 G

ive
 w

a
y tria

n
g
le

ro
a
d
 m

a
rk

in
g
 to

 D
ia

g
. N

o
.

1
0
2

3
 a

t m
in

i ro
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t

ju
n
c
tio

n
.

D
U

R
R

IN
G

T
O

N

E
xistin

g
 m

in
i ro

u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t

m
a

rkin
g
s
 to

 re
m

a
in

S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

 L
H

F
IG

 S
C

H
E

M
E

A
3

0
2

8
 L

A
R

K
H

IL
L

 R
D

 R
O

A
D

 M
A

R
K

IN
G

S

L
IN

IN
G

 P
L

A
N

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

L
E

A
4

K
A

D
/T

/D
U

R
R

/D
0
0
1

O

L
:\T

E
T

\S
C

H
E

M
E

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

\C
A

T
G

\S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

\2
0
2
2
/2

3
\A

3
0
2
8
D

U
R

R
IN

G
T

O
N

W
iltsh

ire
 C

o
u

n
cil (1

0
0

0
4

9
0
5

0
) 2

0
1
9

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
C

A
L

E
S

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
o
.

F
IL

E
 R

E
F

:

N
O

T
E

S
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

:

S
H

E
E

T
 S

IZ
E

:

ED F

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
C

H
E

C
K

D
A

T
E

D
R

A
W

N
A

P
P

R
V

CBO AR
E

V

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
:

T
ra

ffic
 &

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

a
ll, B

y
th

e
se

a
 R

o
a
d
, T

ro
w

b
rid

g
e

W
iltsh

ire
, B

A
1
4
 8

JD

T
e

l: 0
3

0
0

 4
5
6
0
1
0
0

W
e
b
s
ite

: w
w

w
.w

iltsh
ire

.g
o
v.u

k

U
n

a
u

th
o

rise
d
 re

p
ro

d
u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g
e
s C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p
yrig

h
t

a
n

d
 m

a
y
 le

a
d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c
u
tio

n
 o

r C
ivil P

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
s
.

T
h

is m
a

p
 is

 re
p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 fro
m

 O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y
 m

a
te

ria
l

w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf o

f th
e

C
o
n
tro

lle
r o

f H
e
r M

a
je

s
ty's

 S
ta

tio
n
e
ry O

ffice
  ©

 C
ro

w
n
 c

o
p
yrig

h
t.

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

L
IN

IN
G

 P
L
A

N

Page 61



S
tra

tfo
rd

T
h

e

M
a

n
o

r C
o
tta

g
e

ED Bdy

W
a

te
r M

e
a
d
o
w

T
h

e
 H

a
tch

e
s

5
2
.1

m

Drain

F
F

FW

S
lu

ic
e
s

C
o
tta

g
e

F
B

Drain

5
0
.9

m

B
rid

g
e

F
B

D
ra

in
L
B

5
1
.2

m

B
a
rn

ED Bdy

5
0
.6

m

F
B

A
v
o
n
 F

a
rm

 C
o
tta

g
e

D
a
iry

CR

D
e

a
n

's F
a
rm

 C
o

tta
g
e

D
rain

G
P

T
h

e
 L

ittle
 M

a
n
o
r

O
ld

O
ld

F
F

R
H

D
rain

Drain

F
B

A
vo

n
 B

rid
g
e

F
B

F
B

S
ls

U
n
d

N
e
w

 sig
n
 a

n
d
 p

o
sts

N
e
w

 sig
n
 a

n
d
 p

o
sts

A
V

O
N

B
R

ID
G

E

S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

 L
H

F
IG

 S
C

H
E

M
E

D
U

R
N

F
O

R
D

 A
V

O
N

 B
R

ID
G

E
 S

IG
N

IN
G

P
R

E
L

IM
 D

E
S

IG
N

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

L
E

A
4

K
A

D
/T

/D
U

R
N

/D
0
0
1

O

L
:\T

E
T

\S
C

H
E

M
E

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

\C
A

T
G

\2
0
2
2
/2

3
\D

U
R

N
F

O
R

D
A

V
O

N
B

R
ID

G
E

W
iltsh

ire
 C

o
u

n
cil (1

0
0

0
4

9
0
5

0
) 2

0
1
9

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
C

A
L

E
S

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
o
.

F
IL

E
 R

E
F

:

N
O

T
E

S
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

:

S
H

E
E

T
 S

IZ
E

:

ED F

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
C

H
E

C
K

D
A

T
E

D
R

A
W

N
A

P
P

R
V

CBO AR
E

V

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
:

T
ra

ffic
 &

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

a
ll, B

y
th

e
se

a
 R

o
a
d
, T

ro
w

b
rid

g
e

W
iltsh

ire
, B

A
1
4
 8

JD

T
e

l: 0
3

0
0

 4
5
6
0
1
0
0

W
e
b
s
ite

: w
w

w
.w

iltsh
ire

.g
o
v.u

k

U
n

a
u

th
o

rise
d
 re

p
ro

d
u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g
e
s C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p
yrig

h
t

a
n

d
 m

a
y
 le

a
d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c
u
tio

n
 o

r C
ivil P

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
s
.

T
h

is m
a

p
 is

 re
p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 fro
m

 O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y
 m

a
te

ria
l

w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf o

f th
e

C
o
n
tro

lle
r o

f H
e
r M

a
je

s
ty's

 S
ta

tio
n
e
ry O

ffice
  ©

 C
ro

w
n
 c

o
p
yrig

h
t.

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

P
R

E
L
IM

 D
E

S
IG

N

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 P
la

n
 (N

o
t to

 s
c
a
le

)

S
IG

N
 D

E
S

IG
N

 S
H

O
W

N
O

N
 T

H
IS

 P
L

A
N

 A
R

E
IN

D
IC

A
T

IV
E

 O
N

L
Y

Page 62



55

27

1

40

D
ra

in

11

19

4

W
a

te
r  S

tre e
t

31

5
4

2
2

1
1

B
u

lfo
rd

 M
a
n
o
r

HIGH

1

T
C

B

F
B

5

Filling Station

20

4
4

C
LO

SE

25

ROAD

S
u

b

1

3
b

SALISBURY

23

43

L
ittle

6
S

u
b

 S
ta

M
aytim

e

22

7

15

HILL

30

9

12

10

4
3

S
lu

ic
e

4

Sub Sta

4
2

3

E
N

D

18

7
4

.0
m

T
ra

c
k

CL

21b

12

C
h

u
rc

h

2

31

5
3

14

G
P

12

Flint House

ROAD

18

to

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

1

9

O
R

C
H

A
R

D

4
9
a

33

E
l

LEDGER

49

O
rc

h
a

rd

5

A
v
o
n
d
a
le

 S
c
h
o
o
l

11

P
s

7

R
O

A
D

7

28

1
0

E
l

4
4

15

5
a

51

5
5
a

Drain

R
o
s
e
 &

 C
ro

w
n

K
e

tt l ew
e ll

Orchard

3

32

27

38

(P
H

)

1
0

2
0

H
a
ll

S
lu

ic
e

1
0

Nine Mile River

C
A

M
ILLA

CRESCENT

20

S
t L

e
o

n
a

rd
's

1
0

F
B

s

25

20

T
C

B

S
ta

STR
EET

End

218

K
im

b
e

rle
y
 H

ou
s
e

28

21

C
lu

b

11

D
ra

in

39

F
B

3
a

18

5

6

7
6

.0
m

29

E
lm

 C
o
p
s
e

2

S
lu

ic
e

3

11

4

9

24

21a

45

26

6

9

15

41

7
2

.6
m

F
S

21

O
rch

ard
 E

nd

High StreetB
U

L
F

O
R

D
K

H
igh S

treet

P
ro

p
o
se

d
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 ke

rb
 c

ro
ss

in
g
 p

o
in

t

S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

 L
H

F
IG

 S
C

H
E

M
E

B
U

L
F

O
R

D
 D

R
O

P
P

E
D

 K
E

R
B

S

H
IG

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 - P

R
E

L
IM

 D
E

S
IG

N

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

L
E

A
4

2
0
2
2
-0

4
0
/K

A
D

/B
U

L
F

/D
0
0
1

O

L
:\T

E
T

\S
C

H
E

M
E

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

\C
A

T
G

\S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

\2
0

2
2

/2
3

\2
0

2
2

-0
4

0
B

U
L

F
O

R
D

\D
E

S
IG

N

W
iltsh

ire
 C

o
u

n
cil (1

0
0

0
4

9
0
5

0
) 2

0
2
2

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
C

A
L

E
S

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
o
.

F
IL

E
 R

E
F

:

N
O

T
E

S
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

:

S
H

E
E

T
 S

IZ
E

:

ED F

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
C

H
E

C
K

D
A

T
E

D
R

A
W

N
A

P
P

R
V

CBO AR
E

V

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
:

T
ra

ffic
 &

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

a
ll, B

y
th

e
se

a
 R

o
a
d
, T

ro
w

b
rid

g
e

W
iltsh

ire
, B

A
1
4
 8

JD

T
e

l: 0
3

0
0

 4
5
6
0
1
0
0

W
e
b
s
ite

: w
w

w
.w

iltsh
ire

.g
o
v.u

k

U
n

a
u

th
o

rise
d
 re

p
ro

d
u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g
e
s C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p
yrig

h
t

a
n

d
 m

a
y
 le

a
d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c
u
tio

n
 o

r C
ivil P

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
s
.

T
h

is m
a

p
 is

 re
p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 fro
m

 O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y
 m

a
te

ria
l

w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf o

f th
e

C
o
n
tro

lle
r o

f H
e
r M

a
je

s
ty's

 S
ta

tio
n
e
ry O

ffice
  ©

 C
ro

w
n
 c

o
p
yrig

h
t.

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

P
R

E
L
IM

 D
E

S
IG

N

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 P
la

n
 (N

o
t to

 S
c
a
le

)

Page 63



74

5
9

5
7

55

40

31

C
h
y

4
6

48
Filling Station

31

2
0

53

2
6

ROAD

C
o

tta
g
e

44

SALISBURY

23

T
h

e

43

56

50

70

71

A
 3

0
2
8

15

1
2

30

62

G
P

E
l S

u
b

 S
ta

N
E

W
M

A
N

S
 W

A
Y

W
a

te
rg

a
te

Sub Sta

7
6

.0
m

22

R
e
c
re

a
tio

n

12

Flint House

ROAD

G
ro

u
n
d

18

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

1

4

4
9
a

55

El

77

E
l S

u
b

 s
ta

49

5
6

a

R
o

e
d

e
a
n

11

R
O

A
D

Station Terrace

65

O
ffice

51

3
6

2

5
5
a

32

2
0

38

W
a

te
rg

a
te

 F
a

rm
h

ou
s
e

1
0CRESCENT

2
8

48

4
6a

43

20

T
C

B

32

K
im

b
e

rle
y
 H

ou
s
e

3

28

1

Church

29

S
id

in
g
s

2

29

78

9

66

H
a
ll

37

S
P

45

26

6

61

2

54

41

43

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

9
1

.6
m

B
U

L
F

O
R

D

Salisbury Road

A
3028

1
.5

m

1
.5

m

Salisbury Road

P
ro

p
o
se

d
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 ke

rb
 cro

ssin
g
 p

o
in

t

C
u
t b

a
c
k
 a

n
d
 re

-g
ra

d
e
 v

e
rg

e
 to

a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 w
id

th
 fo

r b
o
lla

rd
s

In
sta

ll G
la

sd
o
n
 re

c
y
cle

d
 p

la
ste

r
tim

b
e
r lo

o
k
 sty

le
 b

o
lla

rd
s

S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

 L
H

F
IG

 S
C

H
E

M
E

B
U

L
F

O
R

D
 D

R
O

P
P

E
D

 K
E

R
B

S

S
A

L
IS

B
U

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

 - P
R

E
L

IM
 D

E
S

IG
N

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

L
E

A
4

2
0
2
2
-0

4
0
/K

A
D

/B
U

L
F

/D
0
0
2

O

L
:\T

E
T

\S
C

H
E

M
E

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

\C
A

T
G

\S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

\2
0

2
2

/2
3

\2
0

2
2

-0
4

0
B

U
L

F
O

R
D

\D
E

S
IG

N

W
iltsh

ire
 C

o
u

n
cil (1

0
0

0
4

9
0
5

0
) 2

0
2
2

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
C

A
L

E
S

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
o
.

F
IL

E
 R

E
F

:

N
O

T
E

S
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

:

S
H

E
E

T
 S

IZ
E

:

ED F

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
C

H
E

C
K

D
A

T
E

D
R

A
W

N
A

P
P

R
V

CBO AR
E

V

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
:

T
ra

ffic
 &

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

a
ll, B

y
th

e
se

a
 R

o
a
d
, T

ro
w

b
rid

g
e

W
iltsh

ire
, B

A
1
4
 8

JD

T
e

l: 0
3

0
0

 4
5
6
0
1
0
0

W
e
b
s
ite

: w
w

w
.w

iltsh
ire

.g
o
v.u

k

U
n

a
u

th
o

rise
d
 re

p
ro

d
u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g
e
s C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p
yrig

h
t

a
n

d
 m

a
y
 le

a
d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c
u
tio

n
 o

r C
ivil P

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
s
.

T
h

is m
a

p
 is

 re
p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 fro
m

 O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y
 m

a
te

ria
l

w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf o

f th
e

C
o
n
tro

lle
r o

f H
e
r M

a
je

s
ty's

 S
ta

tio
n
e
ry O

ffice
  ©

 C
ro

w
n
 c

o
p
yrig

h
t.

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

P
R

E
L
IM

 D
E

S
IG

N

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 P
la

n
 (N

o
t to

 S
c
a
le

)
E

x
a
m

p
le

 G
la

s
d

o
n

 G
le

n
w

o
o

d
B

o
lla

rd
 (N

o
t to

 S
c
a
le

)

Page 64



W
hite

22

In
n

M
o
u

n
t P

le
a
sa

n
t

St M
ichael

Haven

D
o
w

n
la

nds

(P
H

)

H
o

lly

Pleasant

B
o

w
e

r

CR

T
h

e
 C

o
ttage

G
re

e
n

a
cres

Track

Eric

W
a

ys
ide

C
h

a
rity

W
E

S
T

P
it

S
to

fo
rd

 H
ouse

Straylands

G
u

n
to

n
 H

o
use

R
eg

in
a

ETL

7
3

.3m

T
h

e
 P

o
p

lars

Track

M
a
rs

tone

River Wylye

T
re

es

K
e-An

RIVERSIDE CLOSE

G
ro

ve
le

y

Riverside

G
ilsto

n

Oakcroft

3

M
P

B
ru

n
sw

ick

5
9

.1m

Glen Mist

Cottages

Pleasant

Close

V
iew

D
ra

in

5
8

.9m

L
a

rkfie
ld

K
y
le a

k
i n

5
8

.9m

Newlands

6
5

.3m

Springfield

Little Hay

S
to

fo
rd

 B
rid

g
e

Staddlestones

T
e
rraqu

in

H
il l C

rest

P
ath (um

)

6
3

.0m

ED Bdy

Mount

R
o

of  T
ops

The Hollies

Oaklands

Gables

K
ia

m
a

L
B

Trevan

V
a

le
 V

ie
w

(d
is

u
se

d)

(d
is

)

T
h
e

 S
w

a
n

G
P

Ly
nd

a le

Mount

L
B

H
o

ve T
o

K
a

l in
g

a
l in

ga

S
u

n
n

ysid
e

Drain

6
H

a
ven

L
y

n
ga

r th

S
T

R
E

E
T

5
9

.1m

South View

S
h

e
lte

r

H
ill V

iew

61.8m

B
e

a
ve

rs

1

Def

F
a

rm

S
to

fo
rd

 B
o
tto

m

P
it

D
e
w

fa
lls

S
t M

a
ry's

B
e

e
ch

-C
ro

ft

Drain

S
to

fo
rd

C
2
8
3

A36

S
to

fo
r d

B
o

tto
m

S
T

O
F

O
R

D

0
.9

6
x1

.8
m

w
h

ite
 g

a
te

5
0

0
m

m

S
T

2
 co

n
cre

te
 fo

u
n

d
a

tio
n

5
0

0
m

m

1
.3

m

0
.9

6
m

White

22

In
n

M
o

u
n

t P
le

a
sa

n
t

St Michael

Haven

D
o
w

n
la

n
d
s

(P
H

)

H
o
lly

Pleasant

G
re

e
n
a
cre

s

Eric

W
a
ysid

e

P
it

Straylands

R
egina

T
re

e
s

Ke-An

RIVERSIDE CLOSE

G
ro

ve
le

y

G
ils

to
n

Oakcroft

M
P

Glen Mist

Pleasant

Close

V
ie

w

5
8
.9

m

L
a

rk
fie

ld

K
yle

a
kin

Newlands

6
5
.3

m

Springfield

Little Hay

Staddlestones

H
ill C

re
st

Mount

R
o
o
f T

o
p
s

The Hollies

Oaklands

Gables

K
ia

m
a

Trevan

V
a

le
 V

ie
w

(d
isu

se
d
)

T
h

e
 S

w
a
n

Mount

L
B

K
a
lin

g
a
lin

g
a

S
u

n
n

ysid
e

L
yn

g
a
rth

South View

B
e

a
ve

rs

1

S
t M

a
ry's

B
e

e
ch

-C
ro

ft

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r v

illa
g
e
 g

a
te

p
o

s
itio

n
e

d
 in

 fro
n

t o
f s

p
e
e
d
 lim

it
te

rm
in

a
l sig

n
.

A
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
o

rk
s
 to

 re
p
la

ce
 p

o
sts

a
n

d
 re

lo
c
a

te
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ity S

p
e
e
d

W
a

tc
h

 s
ig

n
 to

 n
e

a
rb

y w
a
rn

in
g

s
ig

n
 m

o
u

n
te

d
 p

o
st.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r villa

g
e
 g

a
te

p
o

s
itio

n
e

d
 in

 fro
n

t o
f sp

e
e
d
 lim

it
te

rm
in

a
l sig

n
.

A
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
o

rk
s
 to

 re
p
la

ce
 p

o
s
ts

.
N

B
: v

e
rg

e
 is

 n
o

t p
a

rt o
f th

e
 p

u
b
lic h

ig
h
w

a
y
.

C
2
8
3

A36

S
T

O
F

O
R

D

D
ia

g
ra

m
 1

0
6

5
 (4

3
0

0
)

R
e

fe
r to

 N
o

te
 2

.
D

ire
ctio

n
 o

f T
ra

ve
l

D
ire

ctio
n

 o
f T

ra
ve

l

T
h
e

rm
o
p

la
st

ic
(R

e
fl

le
c
to

ri
se

d)

C
/w

a
y <

 7
3
0

0

S
p

e
e

d
 L

im
it

T
e

rm
in

a
l  S

ig
n
s

3
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

0
3

0
0
0

0

1
0

0
0

1
5

0
4

0
0

S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

 L
H

F
IG

 S
C

H
E

M
E

C
2

8
3

 S
T

O
F

O
R

D
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 G

A
T

E
S

P
R

E
L

IM
 D

E
S

IG
N

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

L
E

A
4

K
A

D
/T

/S
T

O
F

/D
0
0
1

O

L
:\T

E
T

\S
C

H
E

M
E

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

\C
A

T
G

\S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

\2
0
2
2
/2

3
\C

2
8
3
S

T
O

F
O

R
D

W
iltsh

ire
 C

o
u

n
cil (1

0
0

0
4

9
0
5

0
) 2

0
2
2

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
C

A
L

E
S

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
o
.

F
IL

E
 R

E
F

:

N
O

T
E

S
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

:

S
H

E
E

T
 S

IZ
E

:

ED F

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
C

H
E

C
K

D
A

T
E

D
R

A
W

N
A

P
P

R
V

CBO AR
E

V

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
:

T
ra

ffic
 &

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

a
ll, B

y
th

e
se

a
 R

o
a
d
, T

ro
w

b
rid

g
e

W
iltsh

ire
, B

A
1
4
 8

JD

T
e

l: 0
3

0
0

 4
5
6
0
1
0
0

W
e
b
s
ite

: w
w

w
.w

iltsh
ire

.g
o
v.u

k

U
n

a
u

th
o

rise
d
 re

p
ro

d
u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g
e
s C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p
yrig

h
t

a
n

d
 m

a
y
 le

a
d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c
u
tio

n
 o

r C
ivil P

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
s
.

T
h

is m
a

p
 is

 re
p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 fro
m

 O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y
 m

a
te

ria
l

w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf o

f th
e

C
o
n
tro

lle
r o

f H
e
r M

a
je

s
ty's

 S
ta

tio
n
e
ry O

ffice
  ©

 C
ro

w
n
 c

o
p
yrig

h
t.

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

P
R

E
L
IM

 D
E

S
IG

N

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 P
la

n
 (N

o
t to

 s
c

a
le

)

E
x

a
m

p
le

 V
illa

g
e

 G
a

te
 D

e
s

ig
n

 (N
o

t to
 s

c
a
le

)

Page 65



P
u
rb

e
c
k
 H

o
u
se

MILL LANE

1

H
e
a
th

e
rb

a
n
k

1
Tanners Lane

L
e
a
d
in

g
 to

 B
3
0
8
6
 H

ig
h
 S

tre
e
t

P
ro

v
id

e
 m

a
rk

in
g
s to

:
D

ia
g
ra

m
 N

o
 1

0
1
2
.1

 (1
0
0
m

m
 w

id
e
)

D
ia

g
ra

m
 N

o
. 1

0
4
0
 (1

0
0
m

m
 w

id
th

)

R
e
a
lig

n
 ju

n
ctio

n
 m

a
rkin

g
s to

:
D

ia
g
ra

m
 N

o
 1

0
1
0

(1
0
0
m

m
 w

id
e
)

S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

 L
H

F
IG

 S
C

H
E

M
E

T
A

N
N

E
R

S
 L

A
N

E
 B

O
L

L
A

R
D

/R
O

A
D

 M
A

R
K

IN
G

S

P
R

E
L

IM
 D

E
S

IG
N

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

L
E

A
4

K
A

D
/T

/S
H

R
E

/D
0
0
1

O

L
:\T

E
T

\S
C

H
E

M
E

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

\C
A

T
G

\S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

\2
0

2
2

/2
3

\S
H

R
E

W
T

O
N

T
A

N
N

E
R

S
 L

A
N

E

W
iltsh

ire
 C

o
u

n
cil (1

0
0

0
4

9
0
5

0
) 2

0
2
2

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
C

A
L

E
S

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
o
.

F
IL

E
 R

E
F

:

N
O

T
E

S
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

:

S
H

E
E

T
 S

IZ
E

:

ED F

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
C

H
E

C
K

D
A

T
E

D
R

A
W

N
A

P
P

R
V

CBO AR
E

V

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
:

T
ra

ffic
 &

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

a
ll, B

y
th

e
se

a
 R

o
a
d
, T

ro
w

b
rid

g
e

W
iltsh

ire
, B

A
1
4
 8

JD

T
e

l: 0
3

0
0

 4
5
6
0
1
0
0

W
e
b
s
ite

: w
w

w
.w

iltsh
ire

.g
o
v.u

k

U
n

a
u

th
o

rise
d
 re

p
ro

d
u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g
e
s C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p
yrig

h
t

a
n

d
 m

a
y
 le

a
d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c
u
tio

n
 o

r C
ivil P

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
s
.

T
h

is m
a

p
 is

 re
p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 fro
m

 O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y
 m

a
te

ria
l

w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a
n
ce

 S
u
rve

y o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf o

f th
e

C
o
n
tro

lle
r o

f H
e
r M

a
je

s
ty's

 S
ta

tio
n
e
ry O

ffice
  ©

 C
ro

w
n
 c

o
p
yrig

h
t.

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

P
R

E
L
IM

 D
E

S
IG

N

Page 66



Stonehenge LHFIG - Parking restriction requests

Road Issue/request Year submitted
Existing restricitons 

in the area?
Notes/other considerations

Amesbury

Holders Road Conflict with school traffic and residential parking 2021 O No restrictions in the area - Day-time restrictions may be worth considering

Mills Way Parking at HRC entrance causing access issues 2021 P
Reported by Waste Team after we put SYL's on Mills Way.  Parking still occuring at the actual entrance to the HRC, however 

there is a garage business in the vacinity, which seems to be the scoure of the problem

Sun Rise Way Parking causng forward visibility and access visibility issues 2020 P
Long running issue - we did some junction protection at the roundabout on Porton Road 2018, but new 

buildings/businesses have arrived and no consideration given by other depts to where vehicles would park…

Church Street Parking causing access issues alongside traffic calming 2022 P
Long running access issue - makes sense to extend DYLs in some places to improve access and maintain the 

passage and repassage of the public highway
Archers Gate Conflict with school traffic and residential parking 2022 O No restrictions in the area - Day-time restrictions may be worth considering

Durrington

Bulford Road (Opposite Avondown)
Parking on inside of bend causing visibility issues and also close to the school entrance which 

is causing concern
2021 P Existing lines on opposite side of road - makes sense to cover this side too especially due to the visibility issues

Larkhill Road junction with Meads Road DTC request to extend existing doubles into Meads Road to aid access for buses 2021 P

High Street junction with Windsor Road DTC request to extend existing doubles into Windsor Road to aid access for buses 2021 P Visibility is poor from the access - any extension of DYLs would reduce on-street parking bays

Windsor Road junction with Downleaze
DTC request to revise junction layout, due to forward visibility issues on the bend and request 

centre line carriageway markings
2021 P Discuss further - might be something that can be added to Ad-Hoc gang

Bulford Road junction with Windsor 

Road (Rosie’s Barbers)
DTC request to extend existing doubles both side of the junction 2021 P Visibility is poor from the access - any extension of DYLs would reduce on-street parking bays

Bulford Road junction with The Ham Parking on the bend and too close to the junction is causing visibility issues and concern. 2021 P
Parking on Bulford Road too close to The Ham junction is far from ideal.  Also the parking on the left if heading south, needs 

addressing.

Bulford Road junction with Larkhill Road 

at the mini roundabout (Petrol station)

DTC request to convert existing single yellows to doubles. 2021 P Makes perfect sense - should have been DYL from the start

New Road junction with School Drive DTC request to  Introduce doubles as junction protection 2021 O Highway Safety concerns - makes sense for DYL junction protection

Meads Road junction with Coronation 

Road Extend existing doubles both sides
2021 P Agree a short extension would aid visibility to the north from Coronation Road

Bulford

A3028 double mini roundabout Parking in close proximity to double mini roundabout causing a hazard to all users 2020 O Makes sense to protect the surounding area of the double mini roundabout and improve visibility and safety

A3028 High Street/Orchard End 

roundabout
Parking in close proximity to the mini roundabout causing a hazard to all users 2020 O Makes sense to protect the surounding area of the mini roundabout and improve visibility and safety

P
age 67





Report To Stonehenge Area Board

Date of Meeting Thursday, 22 September 2022

Title of Report Stonehenge Area Grant Report




Purpose of the Report
To provide detail of the grant applications made to the Stonehenge Area Board.
These could include; community area grants,
health and wellbeing, young persons grants and Area Board initiatives.
To document any recommendations provided through sub groups.




Area Board Current Financial Position
Community Area
Grants

Young People Health and Wellbeing

Awarded To Date

Current Balance

Balance if all grants are agreed based on
recommendations




Grant Funding Application Summary
Application
Reference

Grant Type Applicant Project Total
Cost

Requested

ABG697 Community Area Grant Figheldean
Village Hall

Figheldean Village Hall Heating
System Replacement

£9026.40 £2500.00

Project Summary:

The Village Hall is wholly separate to the Parish Council and is managed and run as an independent charity for the benefit of
all villagers/parishioners. It was built over 20 years ago and the night storage heaters are reaching the end of their life. They
operate on Economy7 electricity but are very inefficient and difficult to manage.



We aim to replace these as part of a larger
project to improve the energy efficiency of the Village Hall, which includes improving the insulation / upgrading the
windows (a "fabric first" approach to energy efficiency), and replacing all lights with LED equivalents. Once all easy-win
energy savings have been achieved, the longer term plan is to install solar panels to offset our electricity bill and hopefully
generate additional energy for the Grid.



The new system will allow us to divide the building into zones and control each
zone independently via the Internet. This will enable us to use our energy far more efficiently, reduce our energy bill
considerably thus helping to secure the long-term viability of the Village Hall, and contribute our small part towards
Wiltshire Council's "Net Zero by 2030" strategy.



We attended an online Wiltshire Council webinar on energy savings
("Village Hall Buildings and Net Zero considerations") on 16th Feb, where we gathered valuable information from the
panellists and other local communities which has helped to inform the approach we are taking for our Village Hall.

ABG766 Older and Vulnerable
Adults Funding

Wiltshire Music
Centre

Celebrating Age Wiltshire £11065.00 £1500.00

Opening Balance For   2022/2023 £ 24,831.00 £ 22,414.00 £ 7,700.00

£ 4,350.00 £ 1,380.00 £ 1,658.16

£ 20,481.00 £ 21,034.00 £ 6,041.84

£ 17,981.00 £ 14,034.00 £ 3,066.84

Page 69

Agenda Item 14

https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/Grant/Application/697
https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/Grant/Application/766


Application
Reference

Grant Type Applicant Project Total
Cost

Requested

Project Summary:

Celebrating Age Wiltshire (CAW) will use arts & heritage activities to reach the most isolated older people in the
Stonehenge area, helping to tackle loneliness and aiming to improve their health and wellbeing through creative and artistic
engagement. In particular CAW will target those people who are vulnerable and socially isolated due to frailty, ill health,
dementia, poor mobility or caring responsibilities. Our programme has developed four different strands of both live and
online activity to meet the needs of this group. CAW is a partnership of community organisations across the county with
Wiltshire Music Centre as lead organisation.

ABG784 Older and Vulnerable
Adults Funding

ART GROUP ART GROUP £620.00 £500.00

Project Summary:

To provide professional tuition to enable older citizens to develop and enjoy the benefits of creating pieces of art, which will
help them to deal with mental wellbeing.

ABG789 Older and Vulnerable
Adults Funding

The Lady
Antrobus Trust

The Hauntings brought to Amesbury £3518.00 £975.00

Project Summary:

The Hauntings is a twenty feet tall statue of a World War One soldier. He is made form sheet steel and old metal tools. He
will stand on the front lawn of Antrobus House Amesbury from late August until April 2023. He will be a major attraction to
the town, which has had a long connection with the armed forces, surrounded aas we are by Larkhill, Bulford, and Tidworth
garrisons, Netheravon camp and Boscombe Down. Many thousands of soldiers trained on Salisbury Plain prior to their
journey from Amesbury railway station down to Southampton to embark for France. Facially the statue resembles
Lieutenant Edmund Antrobus, who was killed in the First World War on October 24th 1914, so it seems appropriate that the
statue is seen here in Amesbury. 

Antrobus House was built in memory of Edmund at the bequest of his mother lady
Florence Antrobus. Lady Florence died in February 1923. The statue being here for the duration stated earlier means that it
will mark the centennial of her death. It will also make a suitable tribute to all those killed in wars when Antrobus House
hosts the starting point of the Remembrance Day parade here in Amesbury in November 2022.

The intention is to have an
opening ceremony on the evening of 3rd October 2022. On October 4th 1914 Lieutenant Edmund Antrobus (Grenadier
Guards) embarked for France from Southampton, never to return. Hie was killed in action and his body was never recovered.
The Hauntings is effectively a memorial to all those young men killed in the First World War. He represents a soldier battle
weary and forlorn. the ghostly figure is on loan free, from his owners. However there are costs bear; to transport him here
from the Dorset Forge near Sherborne on specialist haulage vehicles, (and the return journey), to assemble him, to provide a
proper sound concrete base to stand him on and to keep him secure and insured. 

Once in situ, this magnificent statue will
be a sight that will attract interest from various groups - members of the armed forces, ex service personnel, The Royal
British Legion, the local and regional press, schools, artists etc.


ABG722 Youth Grant Avon Valley
Football Club

Avon Valley Football Club application
for Equipment and Kit

£5174.24 £2000.00

Project Summary:

We are setting up a new community football club, Avon Valley FC. We are a local open age (16 +) football team for young
adults who play at the grass roots level on the local community pitch, the Recreation Ground, Durrington playing in the
local Sunday league. One of our main drives is to offer support for those who wish to continue their journey as they
outgrow the -16 youth teams. We are very aware that this can be a daunting time and we strongly believe in offering and
providing a safe space allowing the young adults not only to develop their skills as individuals on the pitch but also
recognising their needs on a more personal level both on and off the pitch. We support these young adults with health care,
mental health (cold water therapy promoting health and well-being official partner of the club).

Shortly looking at creating
ladies open age teams within the club and aspire in the near future to create a pathway into senior football, then creating a
development team for both senior teams.


ABG793 Youth Grant Amesbury
Rugby Club

Youth Rugby project £13623.00 £5000.00

Page 70

https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/Grant/Application/784
https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/Grant/Application/789
https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/Grant/Application/722
https://manage.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/Grant/Application/793


Application
Reference

Grant Type Applicant Project Total
Cost

Requested

Project Summary:

This is a new section to our club for the ages 16 through to 18 plus also building a development path through to adult
rugby to keep them involved in local community sport.




1. Background
Area Boards have authority to approve funding under powers delegated to them. Under the Scheme of Delegation Area Boards must
adhere to the Area Board Funding and Grants Criteria.
This document is available on the council’s website.



Three funding streams are available to the Area Board, each with an annually awarded amount. These funding streams are as follows:

Community Area Grants (capital)
Young People (revenue)
Health and Wellbeing (revenue)

The Area Board will be advised of the funding available prior to their first meeting of each financial year.




2. Main Considerations
2.1. Councillors need to be satisfied that the applications meet the requirements as set out in the Area Board Funding and Grants
Criteria and that the health and wellbeing and young persons funding guidelines have been adhered to.



2.2. Councillors must ensure that the distribution of funding is in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation to Area Boards.



2.3. Councillors need to consider any recommendations made by sub groups of the Area Boards.




3. Environmental & Community Implications
Grant funding will contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of cultural, social and community activity and
wellbeing in the
community area, the extent of which will be dependent upon the individual project.




4. Financial Implications
Councillors must ensure that the Area Board has sufficient funding available to cover the grants awarded.




5. Legal Implications
There are no specific legal implications related to this report.




6. Human Resources Implications
There are no specific human resources implications related to this report.




7. Equality and Inclusion Implications
Community Area Boards must fully consider the equality impacts of their decisions in order to meet the Council’s Public Sector Equality
Duty.



Community Area Grants will give local community and voluntary groups, Town and Parish Council’s equal opportunity to receive funding
towards
community based projects and schemes where they meet the funding criteria.




8. Safeguarding Implications
The Area Board has ensured that the necessary policies and procedures are in place to safeguard children, young people and vulnerable
adults.



No unpublished documents have been relied upon in the preparation of this report.




Page 71



Report Author
Jacqui Abbott, Community Engagement Manager, Jacqui.Abbott@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 72

mailto:Jacqui.Abbott@wiltshire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Chairman's Announcements
	Briefing note - Annual Canvass
	Post 16 Skills and Participation Offer
	Wiltshire Centre for Indepndent Living briefing note - June 2022
	WILTS Centre for Independent Living slides

	6 Open Floor, including Parish and Partner Updates
	Area Board Update
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8

	7 Shared Lives
	Shared Lives Leaflet2

	13 Update from the Local Highways and Footpaths Improvement Group
	Stonehenge LHFIG Minutes July 2022
	Stonehenge LHFIG Spend - As at July 2022
	Lining Plan A3028 Durrington
	Prelim Design Avon Bridge Signing
	Prelim Design High Street site
	Prelim Design Salisbury Road site
	Prelim Design Stoford gates
	Prelim Design Tanners Lane lining
	Stonehenge restriction requests

	14 Community Area Grants

